Public Document Pack

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) Ay . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Fllntsh"-e
COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Clir David Roney (Chairman)

, . . CS/NG
Councillors: Marion Bateman, Clive Carver,
Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, lan Dunbar, 10 April 2015
Andy Dunbobbin, Robin Guest, Ron Hampson,
Joe Johnson, Richard Jones, Tim Newhouse, Tracy Waters 01352 702331
Paul Shotton, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Arnold Woolley

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 16TH APRIL, 2015 at 10.00 AM to consider the
following items.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 12 March
2015.

4  ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT AND THE CORPORATE
ASSESSMENT REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES FOR
FLINTSHIRE (Pages 9 - 62)

Report of Chief Executive enclosed.




REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 10) (Pages 63 - 94)
Report of Chief Officer (People and Resources) enclosed.

BUDGET VIREMENT PROCESS (Pages 95 - 100)
Report of Chief Officer (People and Resources) enclosed.

DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENT POLICY (Pages 101 - 112)
Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) enclosed.

HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENTS POLICY (Pages 113 - 130)
Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) enclosed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 131 - 134)
Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.




17.

78.

Agenda Iltem 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 MARCH 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room,
County Hall, Mold on Thursday, 12 March 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Peter Curtis (Vice-Chairman in the Chair for the
start of the meeting)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Clive Carver, Paul Cunningham, Andy Dunbobbin,

Ron Hampson, Joe Johnson, Tim Newhouse, David Roney and Paul Shotton

SUBSTITUTION:
Councillor: Vicky Perfect for lan Dunbar

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillors: Bernie Attridge and Haydn Bateman attended as observers

APOLOGY:
Chief Executive

CONTRIBUTORS:

Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance, Chief Officer
(Governance), Chief Officer (Organisational Change)

Finance Manager Strategy Accounting & Systems for agenda item 6 — Revenue
Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 9) and Finance Manager — Technical
Accounting for agenda item 6 — Capital Programme 2014/15 (Month 9)

Managed Agency Contract Manager and Human Resources Manager for agenda
item 7 (Workforce Information Report — Quarter 3 2014/15)

IN ATTENDANCE:
Housing and Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and Committee
Officer

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

The Vice-Chairman sought nominations from the New Independent and
Liberal Democrat Groups for a Chair for the remainder of the municipal year.
Councillor Paul Shotton nominated Councillor David Roney and this was duly
seconded. On being put to the vote, the nomination was carried. Members
congratulated Councillor Roney on his appointment as Chairman.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor David Roney be appointed Chairman for the Committee for the
remainder of the municipal year.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

No declarations of interest were made.

Page 3



79.

80.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 22 January 2015,
30 January 2015 and 12 February 2015 had been circulated to Members with the
agenda.

Matters Arising

Councillor Paul Shotton referred to the former Euticals site in Sandycroft
and asked whether a response had been received from Welsh Government on
the issue of funding. In response, the Leader of the Council explained that a
letter had been sent to the Minister on costs incurred by the Council and a
response was awaited.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

QUARTER 3 IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORT (CORPORATE
RESOURCES)

The Chief Officer (Governance) introduced a report for the Committee to
note and consider elements of the 2014/15 Improvement Plan Monitoring report
relevant to the Committee for the period October to December 2014.

He provided a detailed explanation on the following areas:-

Welfare Reform

Organisational Change
Financial Strategy
Procurement Strategy

Asset Strategy

Access to Council Services
People Change & Development

The Leader of the Council thanked the Chief Officer for his presentation
and apologised for the limited number of Chief Officers in attendance at this
meeting; he provided assurance that this would not be replicated in the future.
He explained that the Council had agreed the Improvement Priorities in June
2014 and the Wales Audit Office Corporate Assessment report, that was to be
submitted to Cabinet on 17 March 2015, provided positive comments on how the
priorities had been applied. He commented on the two additional Extra Care
schemes proposed for Flintshire and of the commitment to the continued roll out
of the Flintshire Connects service in Buckley and Mold. Risks had also been
identified which included Welfare Reform and the roll out of Universal Credit to
families in the Shotton Jobcentre Plus catchment area in addition to the single
claimants that were involved in the pilot scheme. There was a high level of
confidence that the improvement objectives would be achieved and there were
no concerns about non-achievement of the priorities. It was a positive report
even though more work was required.

Page 4



In commenting on the roll out of Universal Credit to families in the Shotton
area, Councillor Paul Shotton queried whether assurance had been sought from
the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) on the level of funding to be
provided to continue the service currently provided to those individuals involved
in the pilot scheme. In response the Leader confirmed that funding was currently
received from DWP which had allowed one-to-one support to the small number of
Universal Credit claimants involved in the pilot scheme. As the number of
families that would be affected by the roll out of Universal Credit was not yet
known, the funding would be monitored to ensure that an adequate level was
received to continue the excellent service provided to those claimants. Councillor
Shotton also raised concern at the note on the introduction of the spare room
subsidy highlighted in the report.

Councillor Peter Curtis agreed with the concerns about the level of funding
for the roll out of Universal Credit to families. Councillor Curtis also raised
significant concern about the changes to the Blue Badge scheme, particularly
about the form that applicants were required to complete and that staff, who were
not medically trained, would be determining whether individuals were entitled to a
Blue Badge. He welcomed the decision by Welsh Government to reconsider the
guidelines that had been produced for Councils on the implementation of the
scheme and highlighted concerns raised by residents. Councillor Curtis also
referred to workshops for Members that had taken place on the changes to the
scheme and the Chairman commented that he felt that the workshops had not
been helpful and spoke of similar comments from residents on the scheme.

In response to a question from Councillor Ron Hampson, the Chief Officer
(Governance) confirmed that Housing Benefit would cease to exist under
Universal Credit and that claimants would receive a single benefit payment which
could include an element for their housing. The Leader said that concerns had
been raised about the impact of Universal Credit roll out and whether this would
result in an increase in rent arrears. It was reported that there were currently 180
live Universal Credit claims and that 19 claimants had been referred to the
Citizens Advice Bureau for personal budgeting support and 88 claims had been
referred from Jobcentre Plus to the Council’s Housing Benefit Service.

Councillor Marion Bateman concurred with the comments on the Blue
Badge scheme and sought clarification on the progress of the Mold Flintshire
Connects service. Councillor Bernie Attridge explained that concerns had been
raised with the Minister on the provision of the Blue Badge scheme and a
response was currently awaited that would be shared with Members once it had
been received. On the issue of Mold Connects office, the Leader explained that
a report was to be submitted to Cabinet on 17 March 2015. It was proposed that
the service could be provided within the Mold Library building and that a further
Connects office could be progressed in Buckley.

In response to a question from Councillor Andy Dunbobbin on the number
of sanctions that had been issued to Universal Credit claimants, the Chief Officer
advised that he would speak to the Revenues & Benefits Manager and would
provide a response to Committee Members.

Page 5



81.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee notes the Quarter 3 Improvement Plan Monitoring Reports
and will continue to highlight and monitor poor performance and feedback details
of any challenge to the Policy, Performance & Partnerships Team for reporting to
Cabinet where appropriate.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 9)

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 9)

The Finance Manager introduced a report to provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 9) for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) which was to be submitted to Cabinet on 17 March
2015.

For the Council Fund, the projected net in-year expenditure was forecast
to be £1.978m lower than budget and was an increase of £0.964m on the
underspend at Month 8. Appendix 1 detailed the reasons for the changes which
included a net reduction in the projected underspend for Social Services due to
additional income and additional one-off vacancy savings which had contributed
to an improved position on workforce efficiencies. Section 3.06 detailed the
efficiencies and it was currently projected that £7.588m of the £8.840m (86%)
would be achieved. Details of the un-achieved efficiencies were reported in
appendix 3.

Section 4 detailed the provisions for inflation and section 5 reported the
existing risks and changes to previously reported risks. Taking into account
amounts needed to be used from the unearmarked reserves and the current
projected outturn at month 8, the projected balance on the contingency reserve at
31 March 2015 was £4.919m; details were summarised in appendix 4.

The HRA was projected to have an overall underspend of £0.304m and a
projected balance at month 9 of £1.470m, which at 4.89% of total expenditure
satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Councillor Tim Newhouse welcomed the projected underspend of
£1.978m.

Capital Programme 2014/15 (Month 9)

The Finance Manager — Technical Accountancy introduced a report to
provide Members with the Month 9 (end of December) capital programme
information for 2014/15 which would also be submitted to Cabinet on 17 March
2015.

The table at paragraph 3.01.1 set out how the programme had changed
during 2014/15 with the revised figure being £30.194m for Council Fund and
£12.431m for HRA. The changes during this period were reflected in the table at
paragraph 3.03.1 and full details were provided in appendix A. The capital
expenditure compared to budget and a required rollover to 2015/16 of £2.225m,

Page 6



82.

were reported and details were shown in appendix B. The overall position
showed a projected underspend of £0.090m.

In response to a question from Councillor Ron Hampson about the offices
at Ewloe, the Chief Officer (Organisational Change) advised that Unilever’s lease
on the building would terminate in July 2016 and added that the building was
currently empty.

Councillor Tim Newhouse referred to capital receipts that had been
received by the Council following the sale of land and suggested that future
Capital Programme update reports include specific information on any large
receipts received by the Council.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT - QUARTER 3 2014/15

The Managed Agency Contract Manager introduced a report to provide
Members with an update for the third quarter for 2014/15 for the following:-

e Headcount and Full Time Equivalent

e Organisational Age Profile

e Employee Turnover and Stability (including redundancies and early
retirements)

Attendance (including 100% attendance)

Performance Appraisals and Development

Resource Management (including recruitment and agency workers)
Equality and Diversity

He explained that the information was being presented in a dashboard format to
provide a visual presentation of the data showing the current status and historical
trends of the Council’'s performance against key performance indicators. He
provided details of the total headcount, turnover, agency spend and days lost for
sickness and explained that the agency spend for 2014/15 had exceeded the
target of £1.83m at the end of quarter 3. This was due to the increased need for
agency workers within Streetscene and Transportation as the vacancies at
operative level currently stood at 57. The days lost per full time equivalent (FTE)
was 9.78 at 31 December 2014, which exceeded the target of 9.60 days, and
was an increase of 1.30 on the figure at 31 December 2013.

Councillor Clive Carver queried the high numbers of employees who were
shown as ‘not stated’ under Ethnicity and Sexual Orientation on pages 160 and
169 and asked whether a form could be issued to all employees during their
appraisal to encourage them to provide the information. In response, the
Managed Agency Contract Manager explained that the information was recorded
by employees on the Itrent Self Service database but a large number of
employees did not have access to Itrent to allow them to input the information.
The Chief Officer (Governance) agreed that officers would consider ways to
increase the coverage of the data and would provide details of the findings to the
Committee.

Page 7



83.

84.

In referring to the sickness figures reported of 10.34 days per FTE,
Councillor Peter Curtis raised significant concern about the high target and
suggested that this should be reduced to a maximum of 3 days. He felt that
productivity would be affected by the high rates of sickness and could also affect
service delivery. The Human Resources Manager explained that work was
undertaken with services, particularly those with a high rate of sickness, on how
to reduce sickness rates and she added that a number or services had levels of
sickness lower than the target figure. Councillor Marion Bateman highlighted the
high rate of sickness within the Streetscene directorate. She also queried why
the information on the sexual orientation of employees was required and in
response, the Managed Agency Contract Manager explained that the Authority
was expected to provide data on ethnicity and diversity on an annual basis. He
added that the information was requested when applicants completed an
application form for vacancies with the Council. The Chief Officer (Governance)
explained that recruitment was currently low and that a large number of staff had
commenced employment with the Authority prior to information on ethnicity and
diversity being requested with application forms. The Human Resources
Manager explained that individuals would be encouraged to provide the data but
could not be forced to do so.

Councillor Curtis welcomed the dashboard format of the report but agreed
with the concerns raised about the levels of sickness in Streetscene and Social
Services, particularly in relation to lifting.

RESOLVED:

That the Workforce Information report for Quarter 3 be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Housing and Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
introduced the report to consider the Forward Work Programme for the
Committee.

She detailed the items for the forthcoming meetings and asked Members
for any suggestions of items for consideration at future meetings.

RESOLVED:
That the Forward Work Programme be approved.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the public or press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.13 am)

Chairman

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 16 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: ANNUAL _IMPROVEMENT _REPORT _AND _THE

CORPORATE ASSESSMENT REPORT OF THE
AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES FOR FLINTSHIRE

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the Annual Improvement Report of the Auditor General
which for 2015 incorporates the first Corporate Assessment and to
endorse the executive response of the Cabinet and senior officers.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Auditor General under the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 (Measure) undertakes and publishes an annual improvement
report for all Welsh Councils, fire and rescue services and national
parks.

2.02 This is the fifth such Annual Improvement Report for Flintshire. It
includes the Appointed Auditor's Annual Audit Letter as previously
reported to Audit Committee in December 2014.

2.03 In 2013/14 the Wales Audit Office (WAQ) began a new four year cycle
of Corporate Assessments of improvement authorities in Wales. An in-
depth Corporate Assessment reports on the Council’s track record of
performance and outcomes as well as the key arrangements
necessary to underpin improvements in services and functions.
Flintshire’s first Corporate Assessment was conducted in late 2014
and the report on its outcomes is included in the Annual Improvement
Report.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The Annual Improvement Report is published by the Wales Audit
Office (WAQO) on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. It brings
together, with the input of other inspectorates such as Estyn and the
Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), a
summary of the regulatory work of the past year. This year the
outcomes of the Corporate Assessment are included in the Annual

Page 9



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

Improvement Report.
The full report is attached as Appendix 1.

The cyclical Corporate Assessments apply to all local authorities (and
other bodies identified in the Measure) on a four yearly cycle. The
first phase of assessments were conducted last year; Conwy CBC
was the first Council in North Wales to undertake the assessment.

This second phase of assessments includes the following authorities:

Flintshire County Council;

Isle of Anglesey Council;

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council;
Monmouthshire County Council;

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council;
City and County of Swansea.

The content and format of the Corporate Assessment followed a
familiar pattern of inspections/audits from WAO:

Desktop analysis

Fieldwork (including interviews of key Members and officers)
‘Outline Conclusions’ (draft findings) meeting

Receipt of draft report for comment

Receipt of final report prior to publication

The first week of fieldwork was undertaken between 15" and 19t
September; with certain follow-up later in September/October.
Draft feedback was provided to officers and the Council leadership in
November and a draft report received before Christmas. Discussions
have been ongoing with WAO throughout the process to ensure that
as much value can be gained by both organisations from the
Assessment.

The content of the Corporate Assessment in based on:-

Information governance
Governance accountability
Asset management
Performance management
Risk management

Vision and strategic direction
Collaboration and partnerships
Improvement planning
Efficiency

Procurement

Public performance reporting
HR

Page 10



3.08

3.09

3.10

e Performance and outcomes

The report builds on the work of the past work of the Wales Audit
Office and other regulatory bodies.

The summary of the full report is attached as Appendix 1. Overall the
Auditor General has concluded that:

“The Council’s track record suggests that it is likely to respond
positively to the internal and external challenges it faces and make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement for 2015-16.”

The judgement reflects the conclusions of the corporate assessment,
that:

“The Council has made significant progress in a number of difficult
areas during the last year; although it needs to strengthen aspects of
its arrangements, the Council is reasonably well placed to continue to
deliver its priorities in the face of further financial challenges”

‘Despite some strengths and areas of progress, aspects of the
Council’s arrangements are not fully supporting decision-making and
the delivery of the Council’s agreed priorities”

“The Council has taken significant strides forward in its use of
resources and now needs to co-ordinate the elements more
systematically in the face of future financial challenges”

“The Council made good progress against the improvement priorities
we looked at but its performance against the national indicators
declined slightly.”

The Auditor General has not made any statutory recommendations
with which the Council must comply. Instead seven advisory
proposals for improvement have been made. These are set out below:

P1 The Council should develop and implement a consistent approach
to business planning that promotes the ownership by staff of key
objectives and targets.

P2 The Council should improve the quality of its reports to committees
and Cabinet to ensure that:

* where necessary, reports enable councillors to refer easily to
relevant policies and previous decisions and discussions;

» key messages and recommendations are clear and succinct; and

* reports to scrutiny committees include recommendations or options
that committees might endorse.

P3 The Council should ensure that, in implementing its revised
strategies for People, ICT and Asset Management:

Page 11



3.11

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

« their financial implications feed into the medium-term financial plan;
and

+ the links between the strategies are fully considered so that
specialist staff are available when required.

P4 Group Leaders should strongly encourage members to take
advantage of the Member Development Scheme.

P5 The Council should take the opportunity of its review of scrutiny
structures to ensure that Overview and Scrutiny Committees can add
real value to Council decision-making by aligning agendas more
explicitly to Council priorities and risks.

P6 The Council should:

+ adopt a consistent approach to managing risk, ensuring that all staff
involved use a similar approach to record impact, likelihood and
mitigating actions; and

« apply this approach to its future savings plans.

P7 The Council should ensure a consistent approach to workforce
planning and use the results to inform future reductions in staff.

The Council, as is practice, makes a formal public response to any

findings within the report. The Council’s response to the Annual
Improvement Report (AIR) is included at Appendix 2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To accept the Annual Improvement Plan and endorse the response
attached following consultation with the Audit Committee.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This report refers to the financial resourcing and planning
arrangements of the Council.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

This report comments upon how the Council has supported people
impacted upon by Welfare Reform.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no specific references to the environment within this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

This report comments upon how the Council has supported people

Page 12



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

impacted upon by Welfare Reform.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The People Strategy and workforce planning and arrangements are
referred to in the report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

This report has been considered by Cabinet and the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has endorsed the Council’s action plan as a
comprehensive response of assurance.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Senior officers have had input into this report. The Annual Audit
Letter was presented to the council's Audit Committee in December
2014.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Summary Report: WAO Annual Improvement Report
incorporating the Corporate Assessment Report 2015.
Appendix 2:  WAO Annual Improvement Report - Executive response

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong

Telephone: 01352 702740

Email: Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



=

WALES AUDIT OFFICE
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU

Annual Improvement Report

Incorporating the Corporate Assessment Report 2014

Flintshire County Councill

Issued: March 2015
Document reference: 138A2015




This Annual Improvement Report incorporating the Corporate Assessment
has been prepared on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales by
Huw Lloyd Jones, Paul Goodlad, Melanie Watson, Andy Bruce,
Gwilym Bury, John Roberts, Avril Watkins, Debra Allen and
Emma Roberts under the direction of Jane Holownia.

Huw Vaughan Thomas
Auditor General for Wales
Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff
CF11 9LJ

The Auditor General is independent of government, and is appointed by Her Majesty the Queen. The Auditor
General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales Audit Office Board, which is
a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the Auditor General. The Wales Audit
Office is held to account by the National Assembly.

The Auditor General audits local government bodies in Wales, including unitary authorities, police, probation,
fire and rescue authorities, national parks and community councils. He also conducts local government value
for money studies and assesses compliance with the requirements of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
20009.

Beyond local government, the Auditor General is the external auditor of the Welsh Government and its
sponsored and related public bodies, the Assembly Commission and National Health Service bodies in Wales.

The Auditor General and staff of the Wales Audit Office aim to provide public-focused and proportionate
reporting on the stewardship of public resources and in the process provide insight and promote improvement.

Page 16



Summary report and recommendations 4

Detailed report

The Council has made significant progress in a number of difficult

areas during the last year; although it needs to strengthen aspects

of its arrangements, the Council is reasonably well placed to continue

to deliver its priorities in the face of further financial challenges 11

Despite some strengths and areas of progress, aspects of the
Council’s arrangements are not fully supporting decision-making
and the delivery of the Council’s agreed priorities 12

The Council has taken significant strides forward in its use of
resources and now needs to co-ordinate the elements more
systematically in the face of future financial challenges 20

The Council made good progress against the improvement
priorities we looked at but its performance against the national
indicators declined slightly 27

The Council’s track record suggests that it is likely to respond
positively to the internal and significant external challenges it
faces and make arrangements to secure continuous improvement

for 2015-16 37
Appendices
Appendix 1 — Status of this report 38
Appendix 2 — Audit of Flintshire County Council’s 2014-15 Improvement Plan 39
Appendix 3 — Audit of Flintshire County Council’'s assessment of 2013-14
performance 41
Appendix 4 — Annual Audit Letter — Flintshire County Council 2013-14 42

Page 17

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Summary report

1 Each year, the Auditor General must report on how well Welsh councils, fire
and rescue authorities, and national parks are planning for improvement in
delivering their services. This report sets out the findings of the work undertaken
on behalf of the Auditor General by the staff of the Wales Audit Office in Flintshire
County Council (the Council) and also draws on the work of the relevant Welsh
inspectorates. The report summarises the assessments undertaken since the
Auditor General published his last annual improvement report in June 2014 and
includes the findings of the Auditor General’s Corporate Assessment, undertaken
in September 2014. Taking all these findings into account, the report records the
Auditor General’s conclusion on whether he believes that the Council will make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement for 2015-16.

2 This conclusion should not be seen as a definitive statement of organisational
health or as a prediction of future success. Rather, it should be viewed as
providing an opinion on the extent to which the arrangements currently in place are
reasonably sound insofar as can be ascertained from the work carried out.

3 We want to find out if this report gives you the information you need and whether
it is easy to understand. You can let us know your views by e-mailing us at
info@wao.gov.uk or writing to us at 24 Cathedral Road, Cardiff, CF11 9LJ.

4 The Auditor General has concluded that the Council’s track record suggests
that it is likely to respond positively to the internal and significant
external challenges it faces and make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement for 2015-16. This judgement reflects the conclusions of his
corporate assessment, that the Council has made significant progress in a
number of difficult areas during the last year; although it needs to strengthen
aspects of its arrangements, the Council is reasonably well placed to
continue to deliver its priorities in the face of further financial challenges.

5 The audit team found that, despite some strengths and areas of progress,
aspects of the Council’s arrangements are not fully supporting decision-
making and the delivery of the Council’s agreed priorities. We reached this
conclusion because:

a the Council has established a wide-ranging set of clearly-stated priorities that
have a broad base of support within the Council and among partners;

b the Council’s corporate planning and reporting of performance have improved
year-on-year but plans at service level are of inconsistent quality; and

¢ sound governance structures are mostly in place but some aspects are not
working as effectively as they might.

Page 18

4 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



We also found that the Council has taken significant strides forward in its use
of resources and now needs to co-ordinate the elements more systematically
in the face of future financial challenges. We found that:

a improvements in financial planning have the potential to support the Council in
maintaining its recent track record of financial savings in the face of increasing
austerity, but difficult decisions lie ahead;

b the successful completion of the Council’s Single Status agreement and Equal
Pay Review has been highly demanding and other Human Resources priorities
have therefore made slower progress than intended;

¢ the Council has a clear vision for its land and buildings, but the links between
asset management and the planning of revenue expenditure are not explicit
enough; and

d despite delivering significant improvements in a number of areas, the ICT
function has struggled to prioritise its work in the face of increasing demand.

Finally, we found that, during 2013-14, the Council made good progress against
the improvement priorities we looked at but its performance against the
national indicators declined slightly.

We concluded that:

a  Flintshire schools continue to provide good value for money and the Council is
seeking further efficiency within the education system;

b  there has been good progress in adult social services but the performance of
children’s services has been less consistent in the face of increasing demand;

¢ overall performance against the national indicators declined slightly, but with
some strong performance across several service areas;

d the Council is making good progress in implementing initiatives to help mitigate
the impact of cuts to welfare benefits and to reduce fuel poverty;

e the Council’s performance in preventing homelessness has improved but
there has been little progress in the length of time people spend in temporary
accommodation; and

f  the Council continues to make progress in improving the Welsh language
capability of its staff but it recognises that progress is not consistent across the
whole Council.

Page 19

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Recommendations and proposals for improvement

9 Given the wide range of services provided and the challenges facing the Council,
it would be unusual if we did not find things that can be improved. The Auditor
General is able to:

a make proposals for improvement — if proposals are made to the Council,
we would expect it to do something about them and we will follow up what
happens;

b make formal recommendations for improvement — if a formal recommendation
is made the Council must prepare a response to that recommendation within
30 working days;

¢ conduct a special inspection and publish a report and make recommendations;
and

d recommend to Ministers of the Welsh Government that they intervene in some
way.

10  We have made no statutory recommendations during previous work this year and
we make none in this report. The following proposals for improvement stem from
our corporate assessment work in September 2014.

Page 20

6 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Proposals for Improvement

P1  The Council should develop and implement a consistent approach to business
planning that promotes the ownership by staff of key objectives and targets.

P2 The Council should improve the quality of its reports to committees and
Cabinet to ensure that:
* where necessary, reports enable councillors to refer easily to relevant
policies and previous decisions and discussions;
+ key messages and recommendations are clear and succinct; and
* reports to scrutiny committees include recommendations or options that
committees might endorse.

P3  The Council should ensure that, in implementing its revised strategies for
People, ICT and Asset Management:
 their financial implications feed into the medium-term financial plan; and
» the links between the strategies are fully considered so that specialist staff
are available when required.

P4  Group Leaders should strongly encourage members to take advantage of the
Member Development Scheme.

P5 The Council should take the opportunity of its review of scrutiny structures to
ensure that Overview and Scrutiny Committees can add real value to Council
decision-making by aligning agendas more explicitly to Council priorities and
risks.

P6 The Council should:

» adopt a consistent approach to managing risk, ensuring that all staff
involved use a similar approach to record impact, likelihood and mitigating
actions; and

» apply this approach to its future savings plans.

P7  The Council should ensure a consistent approach to workforce planning and
use the results to inform future reductions in staff.

Page 21

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Introduction

11

12

13

14

15

16

Under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), the Auditor
General must report each year on how well Welsh councils, fire and rescue
authorities, and national parks are planning for improvement in delivering their
services. Appendix 1 provides more information about the Auditor General’s
powers and duties under the Measure.

In 2013-14, staff of the Wales Audit Office began a four-year cycle of Corporate
Assessments of improvement authorities in Wales. This means that, in addition to
an annual programme of improvement studies and audits of councils’ approaches
to improvement planning and reporting, each Council will receive an in-depth
Corporate Assessment once during a four-year period. In the intervening years, we
will keep track of developments and focus further assessment work on a number of
key themes, developed in discussion with each Council.

We undertook our Corporate Assessment fieldwork in Flintshire County Council
(the Council) during September 2014. This annual improvement report includes
the Corporate Assessment report and also summarises the regulatory reports
issued to the Council since the last annual improvement report was published

in June 2014. Whilst the Corporate Assessment does not aim to provide a
comprehensive analysis of the performance of all of the Council’s services, it
reports on the Council’s track record of performance and outcomes as well as the
key arrangements that are necessary to underpin improvements in services and
functions.

This work has been undertaken by staff of the Wales Audit Office on behalf of

the Auditor General. With help from Welsh inspectorates, Estyn (for education),
the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), and the Welsh
Language Commissioner, we have brought together a picture of what the Council
is trying to achieve, how it is going about it, and the progress it has made since the
Auditor General published his last annual improvement report. Finally, taking all
this into account, the report records the Auditor General’s conclusion on whether
the Council is likely to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement for
2015-16.

This conclusion should not be seen as a definitive statement of organisational
health or as a prediction of future success. Rather, it should be viewed as
providing an opinion on the extent to which the arrangements currently in place are
reasonably sound insofar as can be ascertained from the work carried out.

Our fieldwork for the Corporate Assessment focused on the extent to which
arrangements are contributing to delivering improved service performance and
outcomes for citizens. The corporate assessment sought to answer the following
question:

‘Is the Council capable of delivering its priorities and improved outcomes for
citizens?’

Page 22

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



17

18

19

20

21

The Corporate Assessment covers the following:

a Performance and outcomes:
‘Is the Council making progress on achieving its planned improvements in
performance and outcomes?’

b Vision and strategic direction:
‘Does the Council’s vision and strategic direction support improvement?’

¢ Governance and accountability:
‘Do the Council’'s governance and accountability arrangements support robust
and effective decision-making?’

d Use of resources:
‘Is the Council managing its resources effectively to deliver its planned
improvements in performance and outcomes?’

e Collaboration and partnerships:
‘Are the Council’s collaboration and partnership arrangements working
effectively to deliver improved performance and outcomes?’

f  Managing improvement:
‘Is the Council effectively managing its improvement programme?’

The conclusions in this report are based on the work carried out and, unless stated
otherwise, reflect the situation at the point in time they were concluded. However,

changes in the Council’s operating model — its management structure and the way
in which senior managers work together — form an important context to this report.

In February 2014, the Council consulted on a significant re-shaping of its senior
staffing structure with the aims of:

a maximising the financial efficiency of the organisation and prioritising its
resources; and

b modernising the organisation to be lean, productive, efficient, resilient and high
performing.

The proposals were agreed in March 2014 and the process of recruiting a new
Chief Officer Team began in May. At the time of our Corporate Assessment
fieldwork in September, the final appointment to the team had just been made.

The new operating model eliminates the four Directorates within which all Council
services were previously located. Instead, a single tier of nine Chief Officers
reports directly to the Chief Executive. The proposal reduces the number of senior
posts from 18 to 10, saving at least £0.5 million in a full financial year. The Council
has described the proposals as being, ‘an integral part of meeting our budget
targets and a critical part of our transformation programme’.

Page 23

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



22

23

10

It is too early to evaluate the overall impact of these changes, but we refer
elsewhere in this report to the positive potential of this new operating model, as
well as to some of the associated risks. As the new operating model settles down,
the Council expects to improve and transform its services at a faster pace and
strengthen its ability to respond effectively to external changes.

Since conducting our Corporate Assessment fieldwork, we have met the Chief
Executive and Chief Officer Team, together with the Leader and the Deputy Leader,
and have discussed our provisional findings. The Council has responded positively
to those findings and is already implementing an action plan to address our
proposals for improvement.

Page 24

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Detailed Report

The Council has made significant
progress in a number of difficult areas
during the last year; although it needs to
strengthen aspects of its arrangements,
the Council is reasonably well placed

to continue to deliver its priorities in the
face of further financial challenges




Despite some strengths and areas of progress, aspects
of the Council’s arrangements are not fully supporting
decision-making and the delivery of the Council’s agreed priorities

The Council has established a wide-ranging set of clearly-stated priorities that
have a broad base of support within the Council and among partners

24 The Council benefits from a well-regarded and stable political leadership whose
ambitions for the county are, for the most part, shared across all political groups.
There is far less political tension than during previous administrations. The
leadership has recently begun to engage more extensively than before with
opposition groups in paving the way for the 2015-16 budget. Opportunities to build
consensus in this way will become increasingly valuable in future as the Council
faces more and more difficult decisions.

25 The Council’s vision and strategic priorities have been developed in conjunction
with, and are complementary to, those of its partners within the Local Service
Board (LSB). Working with its partners, the Council has established eight standing
priorities for the duration of its term of office. The priorities, which constitute the
Council’s Improvement Objectives, address the following themes:

a  Living Well
b Poverty
¢ Housing

d  Environment

e Economy and Enterprise
f  Skills and Learning

g Safe Communities

h  Modern and Efficient Council

26 The Council sets out its vision clearly within its Improvement Plan, as required
by the Local Government Measure 2009 (the Measure). For 2014-15, the
Council’s coherent set of eight strategic priorities is underpinned by more detailed
sub-priorities, some of which are identified clearly as areas of particular focus
during the year. Though wide-ranging, the Council’s vision demonstrates a clear
commitment to continuous improvement, reflected by targets for improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of its services, particularly those associated with its
in-year Improvement Objectives.

27 The Council has a track record of, and continued commitment to, delivering
services to the public in partnership and collaboration with other councils,
public sector organisations, business and voluntary sector partners. Despite the
uncertainty surrounding the future configuration of local government in Wales,
the Council has a clear vision of its future role in partnership and collaborative
arrangements, recognising that it can no longer continue to deliver all services in
the way it has in the past. The Council plays a high profile role within the LSB and
partners speak highly of the willingness and commitment of the Council’s senior
officers and members to work collaboratively.

Page 26

12 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



28  The Council has aligned its own Improvement Plan with the wider Flintshire
Single Integrated Plan, the ‘Wellbeing Plan’, which is overseen by the LSB. The
Council’s priorities therefore represent its agreed contribution to the achievement
of the broader outcomes set out within the ‘Wellbeing Plan’. The priorities from
the ‘Wellbeing Plan’ have been agreed between the Council and its partners, fairly
reflecting individual partners’ priorities, and so that they are consistent with the
partner organisations’ objectives and desired outcomes. Although the LSB and
Council do not have an overall resource plan or pooled budget for the delivery of
the ‘Wellbeing Plan’, resources are agreed on a project-by-project basis.

29  The Council has a framework and guidance in place to encourage a consistent
approach to stakeholder engagement. The Council demonstrates an understanding
of its accountability to the public through its Public Engagement and Consultation
Service Framework. Guidance for staff on the purpose and importance of effective
engagement, available on the Council’s intranet, is clear and succinct. The
guidance is supported by templates, and a range of case studies to illustrate good
engagement practice with a range of audiences.

30  Despite its framework and guidance, the Council has not been systematic in
engaging with the public about its priorities. Instead, the Council tends to rely on
the democratic representative role of its councillors in gauging public opinion.
Some individual services have analysed the needs of communities and of
service users but the Council and its partners do not have access to any recent,
comprehensive surveys or assessments of public opinion.

31 The Council is expanding the ways it engages with citizens in order to try and
engage with different groups. The Council’s budget consultation process for 2015-
16 began via the internet, and social media was used to hold a Twitter debate.
Council services are using feedback to improve engagement events. For example,
an event for young people with disabilities was informed by feedback from previous
attendees. The changes made to the event were appreciated by the young people.
The Council’s new housing company, North East Wales Homes and Property
Management, is making extensive and effective use of social media to engage with
its customers and with citizens more widely.

The Council’s corporate planning and reporting of performance have improved
year-on-year but plans at service level are of inconsistent quality

32 We have, in the past, been critical of the extent to which annual Improvement Plans
have communicated the Council’s priorities effectively to citizens. The Council has
worked hard to improve the quality of this key plan and the Improvement Plan for
2014-15" is a clear and accessible document that sets out far more clearly than
before what the Council plans to do and how its success might be measured and
evaluated. We issued a certificate in July 2014 confirming that the Improvement
Plan discharged the Council’s duties under the Measure (see Appendix 2).

1 The Council’s Improvement Plan for 2014-15 is available on its website: http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Policy-and-
Performance/Improvement-Plan-2014-15-(FINAL)--English.pdf. Page 27

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 13



33

34

35

36

37

14

Having agreed to implement its new operating model, the Council also agreed

to stop producing the annual Directorate Plans that had previously set out each
Directorate’s contribution to achieving the Council’'s Improvement Objectives. The
Council has acknowledged that these plans were time-consuming to produce and
had limited beneficial impact. They tended to reinforce the distinctions between the
Directorates and had the potential to dilute a corporate approach to the delivery of
some of the Council’s priorities, particularly those relating to the theme of ‘Modern
and Efficient Council’.

We found considerable inconsistency in the quality of business and service
planning to deliver the Council’s Improvement Objectives. We found it difficult to
trace the ‘golden thread’ through from the Improvement Objectives to the level that
sets out staff’s role in their delivery. An Internal Audit report on risk management,
issued in August 2014, identified that some services had no service plans in place
during 2013-14. Among the service plans we examined, a number of different
formats are being used. Although a uniform format for service planning may not
be appropriate, the Council acknowledges that it needs to develop an updated
corporate approach to service planning. The Council intends to work towards
putting this in place for 2015-16, informing its approach by reviewing the various
approaches that different services are currently adopting.

We found a mixed picture in the extent to which staff engage with and ‘own’ those
objectives and targets that relate to the areas for which they are responsible. The
Council’s staff appraisal process is not applied consistently and falls short of the
Council’s own target for completion. However, some staff that we spoke to valued
the one-to-one supervisory meetings that they were involved in. Such meetings
offer regular opportunities to reflect constructively on performance and progress
and to consider whether changes are necessary in order to achieve agreed goals.
The implementation of a new performance appraisal process is well underway with
the aim that all staff should have been appraised under the new system by mid
2015.

There are also a number of strong elements within the Council’s performance
management arrangements. For example, guidance on target-setting incorporates
useful requirements to include longer-term aspirational targets and to highlight
‘maintenance targets’. These maintenance targets operate as a valuable check to
ensure that a focus on a specific area does not adversely affect the performance of
other aspects of service delivery.

The Council has a clear focus on improving service performance and outcomes,
demonstrated most clearly through its annual improvement planning process.

The significant majority of annual targets (and many short and medium-term
aspirational targets) anticipate that performance will continue to improve. However,
the Council recognises that it will need to review its priorities and the scale of its
ambitions, to reflect the increasingly challenging budget position, with a greater
emphasis on maximising service efficiency.

Page 28

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



38

39

40

41

42

The Council is robust in ensuring the quality and accuracy of its Annual
Performance Reports, which are required under the Measure. The content of
draft reports is challenged and amendments are made and agreed before the
reports are finalised. The process does, however, involve a number of tiers and
is demanding on staff resources. In recognising this, the Council is planning to
explore alternative, less resource-intensive ways of carrying out this aspect of
quality control.

We have, in the past, reported the complexity of aspects of the Council’s Annual
Performance Report, and criticised the extent to which its key messages are
accessible to the public and to councillors. The Council has responded positively
to past proposals for improvement and we judged that the Council’s assessment
of its performance in 2013-14, published in October 2014, complied with the
requirements of the Measure. We issued a certificate confirming our opinion in
November (see Appendix 3).

Other performance reports to committees are often still long and highly detailed.
The Council has now begun to implement an ‘exception reporting’ format which
highlights only those areas where performance is worse than anticipated or where
there are significant risks to future progress. This has the potential to improve both
the effectiveness and the efficiency of performance reporting.

The LSB has successfully adopted the Council’s performance management
framework to monitor the delivery of the Single Integrated Plan. The framework
includes a timetable for mid and end-of-year partnership performance reviews
and requires the LSB to publish an annual end-of-year report that summarises
the impact it has achieved. The framework also includes valuable measures that
demonstrate the delivery of most of the partnership outcomes. However, some
performance information relates more to inputs, processes and outputs, and could
be clearer in terms of benefits for the public.

The Council has a good understanding of the extent of its collaborative working
and partnerships and has produced a position statement setting out its strategic
partnerships and regional collaborations in 2014. The information in the statement
has enabled the Council to make informed decisions about future plans and
performance management regarding individual partnerships. However, the Council
could do more to explain the intended impact of some partnerships and joint
working arrangements, and the benefits they should deliver for the public.

Page 29

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 15



Sound governance structures are mostly in place but some aspects are not
working as effectively as they might

The Council has sound structures and arrangements in place to support good
governance, but some of its strategies and supporting documents are out of date

43 Acomprehensive Governance Framework is in place that identifies the
strategies and planning arrangements in place to ensure the Council is well
run and governed. The Framework clearly sets out committee and officer
roles, responsibilities and reporting lines. It also details internal and external
assurance arrangements and the four enabling corporate strategies that are
seen as the pillars of the Council’s governance arrangements. The Council has a
comprehensive constitution which is part-way through a three-year rolling review
programme to ensure it is up to date. Staff receive training on its content and the
internal audit programme provides assurance of compliance with key elements
such as the completion of declarations of interest by councillors.

44 Governance arrangements are reviewed annually by heads of service and
chief officers who are held to account for governance within their service areas.
Increasingly, members are also being involved in self-assessing governance
arrangements. However, some of the Council’s enabling strategies, such as those
for HR and ICT, are out of date and are currently being reviewed. We found that
the Council has lost sight of the aims of the existing strategies, focusing instead on
more narrowly-focused action plans. The Council has not managed well enough
the connections between its Asset Management, ICT and People Strategies and
their implications for its financial planning. This indicates that the strategies have
not fully supported the governance framework, as intended.

45 The structure and working style of the new Chief Officer Team have the potential to
identify and exploit the linkage between the Council’s four enabling strategies more
effectively than before, helping councillors to manage competing priorities more
coherently.

46 The constitution sets out clearly the roles and responsibilities of members and
officers and the Leader is clear that ultimate accountability for achieving Council
priorities lies with Cabinet members. However, this is not made explicit in
committee or Cabinet reports which do not include the name of the responsible
Cabinet member. Officers usually lead the presentation of papers at scrutiny
committee meetings, although Cabinet members attend and provide informed and
insightful input to resulting debates.

47  Arange of different but appropriate governance arrangements underpin the
regional and local collaborations in which the Council is involved. A formally-
constituted Joint Committee oversees the work of the North Wales Regional Waste
initiative, for example, and GwE, the regional school improvement consortium.

Page 30

16 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



The Council’s internal audit arrangements are robust and support the work of the
Audit Committee

48  The Council’s internal audit programme responds effectively to changes in risk and
demand. The Council produces a three-year internal audit strategic plan which
is reviewed and updated annually. It takes into account Council priorities, risks
and areas for improvement. A mid-year review of planned activities was recently
undertaken to reflect changes in the management structure. Meetings were held
with each new chief officer and their teams to confirm that audit plans were still
valid. As a result, the internal audit programme has been amended appropriately.
The internal audit plan covers all portfolios and is agreed by the Audit Committee.
The implementation of both external and internal audit recommendations is closely
monitored. The recommendations from these reports are tracked electronically and
any failure to respond is reported to the Audit Committee. In addition the internal
auditor meets quarterly with departmental teams to monitor progress. The Audit
Committee is generally effective; members understand their role and the committee
provides a good level of challenge.

Elected members carry out their roles diligently but the impact of scrutiny is less
than it might be

49  Cabinet members are generally well informed about their portfolios. They meet
regularly with the relevant senior officers and the Leader and Deputy Leader have
a constructive and trusting relationship with the Chief Executive and Chief Officers.
Informal Cabinet meetings with the Chief Officer Team prior to each Cabinet
meeting are productive in clarifying members’ understanding of up-coming papers.
The subsequent formal decision-making at Cabinet is therefore well-informed, and
meetings are brisk and business-like, although the extent of debate in the public
arena is often limited.

50  Member development programmes and training, while offered and promoted,
are not well attended, and the take-up of member personal development reviews
has not been a success. Appropriately, councillors may only take part in Planning
or Licensing Committee meetings after undertaking specific training, and these
courses are well attended. However, attendance at other training events has been
poor. The Council has undertaken a review into this, and is changing the way
some training is delivered. Members do not feel they have the opportunity to shape
training programmes but member development is not driven at the Council.

51 Some longstanding members question the need for training. However, the
various committees that we observed suggested that there remains the potential
to improve member skills such as the chairing of meetings, the interpretation of
council reports and the identification of strategic rather than ward-based issues for
discussion.

Page 31

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

17



52

53

54

55

The Council has six overview and scrutiny committees which are well resourced
with dedicated officer support. The Council recognises that the balance of work
between committees varies and the number of committees is comparatively high
compared to the Welsh average. Overview and scrutiny structures have not been
reviewed since 2010 and the Council is now planning to review structures.

Cabinet members support the scrutiny process well by attending meetings
regularly. However, the impact that scrutiny is having on decision-making is often
unclear. A high proportion of the work of scrutiny committees takes the form of
monitoring reports on matters such as the budget or on performance against
targets, although individual members also raise items and request reports on
issues of interest to them. A small proportion of scrutiny agendas relate to ‘pre-
decision scrutiny’ whereby committees consider issues before they reach Cabinet
for decisions to be taken. All Scrutiny committees have forward programmes but it
is not clear how these are influenced by corporate priorities, the Cabinet agenda or
the corporate risk profile.

The level of challenge and quality of debate in scrutiny committee meetings varies.
There are examples of scrutiny providing decisive challenge, such as when a task
and finish group was established to review the Council’s approach to target setting.
However, reports presented to scrutiny committees are often for noting rather than
requiring the agreement of recommendations to Cabinet. Discussion tends to lack
focus as a result and the scrutiny function is limited in terms of its contribution to
Council policy or priorities and in ensuring that decisions benefit from a wide range
of political views.

The quality of papers presented to scrutiny committees and to Cabinet varies too
much. Some reports are too long, too detailed or include unnecessary jargon,
meaning that they can be difficult to understand for non-specialist members.

For example, the ICT quarterly reports presented to Cabinet and committees
include helpful performance indicators relating to customer satisfaction. However,
references to progress on larger projects relating to systems are vaguer and rely
on members referring to previous reports to get an understanding of how projects
have moved on or how much work remains. Finance and budget-related papers
are also not easy to understand. This means that the Council risks inadequate
challenge on financial performance as members may not understand the issues
fully.

Improvements to the previous complex risk management arrangements have not
yet resulted in a robust system that is applied consistently

56

18

The Council recognises that it is on a journey in relation to developing a robust
approach to the identification and management of risk. It has tried in recent

years to simplify what was a complex risk management system but has not yet
established arrangements that are applied consistently across the organisation.

Page 32

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



57 Under the current arrangements, the Council’s corporate risks are reflected only
in its Annual Improvement Plan and Governance Statement. There is no effective
‘live’ system, therefore, for identifying and managing new risks at a corporate level.
There is no robust process for identifying operational risks that are escalating, and
which might be better managed as corporate risks.

58  Although the Council has produced extensive guidance on risk management,
this is out of date in some respects. The Council expects operational risks to be
managed within service plans but, as has been highlighted earlier in this report,
service planning is not currently consistent with corporate guidance. The use of
inconsistent and confusing terminology is also unhelpful, as is a tendency in some
areas not to express risks in sufficient detail.

There are some areas of weakness in the Council’s arrangements to support the
safeguarding of children

59 Between March and May 2014, we completed a review in all councils of their
arrangements to support the safeguarding of children. The work also included a
review of the Council’s whistleblowing arrangements. As well as interviewing key
staff and councillors and reading relevant documents, we conducted an online
survey for elected members, senior managers, and staff in the education and
leisure services to test each council’s arrangements.

60  We have reported the outcome of this work separately and made two proposals for
improvement which we have not repeated in this report. In summary, we found that:

a the Council has established clear governance and scrutiny arrangements for
managing its children’s safeguarding responsibilities but the lack of a specific
local policy to underpin decision-making is a weakness;

b the proportion of survey respondents who were aware of who is the Council’s
Designated Officer for Child Protection and its lead councillor was significantly
lower than our survey average;

¢ the Council reports its performance on safeguarding issues on an ad hoc rather
than a regular basis;

d  the Council has no formal process to confirm that all relevant staff have
received safeguarding training, with a below average proportion of survey
respondents reporting that they had received recent training;

e the Council has assured itself that it complies with data protection
requirements; and

f  the Council has a satisfactory whistleblowing policy which it applies
appropriately.

Page 33

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

19



The Council has taken significant strides forward in its use of
resources and now needs to co-ordinate the elements more
systematically in the face of future financial challenges

Improvements in financial planning have the potential to support the Council in
maintaining its recent track record of financial savings in the face of increasing
austerity, but difficult decisions lie ahead

61 We have been critical in previous reports of the Council’s medium-term financial
planning. Until recently, budget planning has tended to focus only on the year
ahead. The Council has therefore tended to rely on in-year projects to deliver the
necessary savings, rather than embarking on longer-term work whose financial
benefits may not materialise until subsequent years. This short-term approach has
contributed to the rapid pace of change that has been necessary during 2014 in
order to deal with the larger than expected reduction in central government funding
for 2015-16, and which is likely to continue.

62  The Council has responded positively to the need to improve its medium-term
financial planning and has now put in place a three-year plan that it will refresh
annually. The new Chief Officer Team has the potential, as intended, to contribute
a more corporate, wide-ranging view than before to this plan, improving the
Council’s capacity to manage all of its resources. The Council is aware of the risks
associated with the fact that its Chief Finance Officer is not a member of the Chief
Officer Team and has mitigated these risks successfully thus far.

63  Flintshire’s demography results in the Council receiving a lower level of funding
per head of population via the Welsh Government’s Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
than most councils in Wales. The RSG contribution, together with Flintshire’s
allocation of non-domestic rates, represents about 75 per cent of the Council’s
budget, with the remainder coming from Council Tax. Rates of Council Tax in
Flintshire are slightly below the Wales average and have increased comparatively
slowly in recent years.

64  Flintshire’s gross revenue budget? for 2014-15 was £315.3 million. Mainly as a
result of the comparatively low level of RSG income, gross revenue expenditure
per head of population in Flintshire is well below average; Council services as a
whole therefore cost less to run than in almost all other councils in Wales.

65  Exhibit 1 shows that, in 2014-15, gross revenue expenditure per head of population
in Flintshire was £2,064 per person, a little lower than it was in 2011-12. During the
same period, average gross budget per head in Wales has increased from £2,259
per person in 2011-12 to £2,312 per person in 2014-15. In real terms, we calculate
that Flintshire’s budgeted gross revenue expenditure has fallen by about seven
per cent since 2011-12, while the average for councils across Wales has fallen by
about three per cent.

2  Gross revenue budgets are reported net of income and charges, but they include specific grants distributed by the Welsh

Government. Page 34

20 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Exhibit 1 — Budgeted gross revenue expenditure per head of population

£2,350
£2,300
£2,250
£2,200
£2,150
£2,100
£2,050 -
£2,000 -
£1,950

£1,900 -

66

67

68

B Flintshire

B Wales

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Despite its year-on-year approach to financial planning, the Council has, therefore,
made significant savings and efficiencies in recent years, with no apparent adverse
impact on the accessibility and quality of services. During the three years

2011-12 until 2013-14, the Council planned to deliver about £19 million in savings,
and has reported that about 80 per cent of these plans achieved the desired
results. The budget for 2014-15 included plans for a further £11.9 million of
savings. The Council has reported to members that, in December 2014,

the original plans were on track to yield about £9 million.

The budget reductions to date stem from a range of sources, including a range
of service reviews and from improved procurement of goods and services. The
Council acknowledges, however, that its procurement of goods and services
remains an area for continued improvement.

Officers support the budget planning process well by providing detailed estimates
of likely cost pressures and other changes in the year ahead. However, budgets in
recent years have made little explicit reference to the Council’s priorities. As further
future budget reductions bite, the Council is aware of the fact that it faces difficult
decisions that will need to be guided by the priorities it has set itself. New models
of service planning have the potential to make a positive contribution in informing
such decisions.

Page 35

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 21



69

70

71

72

22

Planning the 2015-16 budget has proved to be particularly challenging given the
late announcement of a larger-than-anticipated reduction in RSG. The Council’s
political leadership has, in the past, tended to unveil its budget plans at a late stage
in the planning process. This year, however, the Council has begun to engage
with the public about the challenges it faces, and political leaders have taken

the opportunity to engage more widely than before with other political groups.
Such a process has been valuable in other councils in gaining a helpful degree
of consensus before major decisions are taken. At the time of our Corporate
Assessment in September 2014, there was a funding gap for 2015-16 of about
£16 million. At that time, there was a significant risk that the Council might not

be in a position to set a balanced budget. However, the Council set a balanced
budget as required on 17 February 2015. The Council is nevertheless well aware
that further large reductions in its income are likely in years to come and that the
decisions needed to set future budgets will become increasingly difficult.

The Council invests significant time and effort in monitoring its financial
performance and in producing detailed monthly reports to members. Councillors we
spoke to value these reports. However, and as is the case for some performance
monitoring reports, there is scope to review these budget monitoring reports with a
view to making them shorter and easier to follow.

The budget monitoring reports show that, on balance, budgetary control is sound.
Total revenue expenditure has been about £3 million (or one per cent) less than
the budget in each of the last three financial years. However, some demand-led
budgets such as those for out-of-county placements are particularly volatile and
show significant changes from one month to the next. Such variations are unhelpful
in predicting end-of-year out-turn and suggest that there is a need for better
forecasting and demand management at service level.

The Council’'s Annual Audit Letter (see Appendix 4), issued for and on behalf of the
Appointed Auditor in November 2014, reports that:

a the Council complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and
use of resources during 2013-14; and that

b the Appointed Auditor is satisfied that the Council has appropriate
arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Page 36

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



The successful completion of the Council’s Single Status agreement and Equal
Pay Review has been highly demanding and other Human Resources priorities
have therefore made slower progress than intended

73 The Council has a well-established and experienced Human Resources and
Organisational Development (HR & OD) team to support it in delivering its
Improvement Objectives and its change agenda. A comprehensive set of core and
supplementary HR policies is in place and the team has also produced a range
of guidance documents and toolkits to support managers in areas such as agile
working and workforce planning.

74 The People Strategy 2009-2012, extended until 2014, forms one of the four pillars
of the Council’'s governance framework. The strategy sets out a clear vision that
was appropriate when the strategy was first adopted. However, changes in priority
and, particularly, in the financial climate since that time have resulted in the Council
losing sight of the strategy as a whole and focusing instead on specific projects at
the expense of others.

75  The considerable demands of the Single Status agreement and Equal Pay Review
have, in particular, diminished the capacity available within the HR & OD team for
other activity aligned to the strategy. The Council has now almost completed this
complex and resource-intensive work which has been highly necessary and, after
a slow start, has been well managed. However, the demands of the work led to the
reprioritisation of some of the other work required to lay the foundations for future
financial savings and efficiencies. This work has therefore been later in starting
than would be ideal. The introduction of a new staff appraisal system, for example,
was delayed and the Council has had less success in reducing sickness absence
figures than it had intended. Absence rates have remained steady over the last
three years at an average of 10.5 days per full-time member of staff, well above the
Council’s target of 9.6 days. During our Corporate Assessment, some service users
also reported concerns about delays in processes such as recruitment.

76  The Council has a good relationship with the independent and voluntary sectors
and contributes well, alongside its partners, to developing the workforce within
those organisations. This has resulted in increasing numbers of independent and
voluntary sector staff receiving training alongside the Council workforce on, for
example, providing welfare reform guidance. The Council works closely with Coleg
Cambiria in a joint initiative providing advice and support to business start-ups,
including help for writing business plans, market research and financial planning
with support from experienced mentors.

77 However, we found that workforce planning, linked to talent management, is not
being carried out systematically across the Council. Workforce planning tends to
occur as a reaction to change rather than providing information and guidance that
inform change. There is a risk, therefore, that the Council loses skills and expertise
from among its staff without there being sufficient suitable replacements available.

Page 37

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 23



78 Following the implementation of the new operating model and the appointment
of the Chief Officer Team, the Council is making good progress in developing
a new three-year People Strategy. In doing so, the Council has engaged well
with a variety of stakeholders, including councillors. This early engagement has
the potential to help elected members to take ownership of the strategy, and to
keep sight of its broader aims as they monitor progress against future actions.
Nevertheless, plans to improve or at least maintain services whilst achieving
significant cost reductions through reducing staff numbers represent a significant
challenge.

79  Senior staff have considered the future delivery of the HR & OD function and
acknowledge that the current model needs to mature during the life of the new
strategy in order to create further capacity within the HR & OD team. The future
model will require service managers to be more self-sufficient than in the past
in managing their staff, drawing on specialist HR support only in a consultative
capacity. A well-regarded and accredited training programme for managers is
already in place, established in partnership with Coleg Cambria.

The Council has a clear vision for its land and buildings, but the links between
asset management and the planning of revenue expenditure are not explicit
enough

80  The Council owns significant land and property assets with an overall value of
about £1 billion, including its stock of about 7,400 council houses. The Council
has a clear vision and sense of purpose for its assets, summarised as ‘having
the right buildings in the right places for the right uses’. However, until recently,
the Council has taken an ad hoc, rather than a systematic approach to managing
some of its assets, including its approach to dealing with land or buildings surplus
to requirements. The Council has a clear plan for retaining or disposing of its small
agricultural estate and its operational buildings. It is now reviewing the options
for the remainder of its property assets, including a commercial estate with a
significant backlog of repairs and maintenance and an extensive range of buildings
used for community-related purposes throughout the County.

81 The Council’s asset management plan was produced in 2010. Although due for a
refresh, it remains in most respects a comprehensive and well-developed strategy.
However, the principles it describes — such as transferring surplus assets to the
community, via community asset transfers® — have not always been implemented
with sufficient pace. During 2013-14, the Council completed just two community
asset transfers but it expects to accelerate progress during 2014-15 and beyond
by simplifying and standardising the transfer process. Similarly, the Council’s Agile
Working project, that helps its staff to work more flexibly and makes more efficient
use of floor space, has made less progress than anticipated.

3 Community Asset Transfer: the transfer of land or buildings into the ownership or management of a Voluntary/Community Sector
organisation or statutory body. This allows organisations to apply for grant support which would not be available to the Council. It
means that the Council is no longer responsible for the cost of managing and maintaining the asset, and the community retains use
of the asset — which often increases due to greater local ‘ownership’. Pag e 38

24 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



82  The Council has collaborated successfully in joint asset planning with public
sector partners, though this work has focused on individual projects rather than
being led by long-term, strategic joint planning. Nevertheless, recent examples
of asset planning are helping the Council and its partners to meet several shared
improvement objectives, by co-locating front-line services within town centres. The
Connect Centre at Flint is a good example of joint asset planning involving the
creation of a one-stop-shop, co-location of the local police station, redevelopment
of the former police station site, relocation of back-office staff and the closure
of a surplus office building. This arrangement supports the Council’s efforts to
regenerate the town centre, reduces the operational space occupied by the
Council, provides a local base for partners such as the Department for Work and
Pensions to deliver their services and local hot-desk facilities for Council staff who
work within and around Flint.

83  Inrecent years, the financial challenges facing the Council have encouraged it to
recognise its land and property assets as a strategic corporate resource. However,
although the impact of the asset disposal programme on the Council’s capital
programme is generally clear, the contribution that effective asset management
is expected to make to its Medium Term Financial Plan is not explicit. Similarly,
although asset management-related performance compares favourably with
other councils across Wales, the Council does not use performance management
proactively to inform decision-making. However, the Council’s capital investment
projects are robustly managed both at a strategic level and for individual projects
and include a clear commitment to sustainability.

Despite delivering significant improvements in a number of areas, the ICT
function has struggled to prioritise its work in the face of increasing demand

84  As with its People Strategy, the Council’s ICT Strategy represents one of the four
pillars of the Council’'s governance framework. There are further similarities in
that the ICT Strategy is now out of date and, more importantly, changes since the
strategy was first adopted have resulted in the Council losing sight of the aims
of the strategy as a whole, focusing instead on specific projects, performance
indicators and targets.

85  There have, nevertheless, been significant developments in the use of technology
that have contributed to improved efficiency and to a wider range of ways for
customers to access Council services. The Council’'s website is much improved in
terms of its appearance and in terms of the ease of access to services and to key
documents. In addition, the Council has produced an ‘app’ for smartphones, further
improving the availability of its services and responding to the changing needs of
its customers.

Page 39

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 25



86

87

88

26

The Council has also exploited technology effectively to improve access to services
for those customers preferring face-to-face contact or the use of the telephone.

In addition to the Council’s main call centre, the Flintshire Connect centres in
Holywell, Connah’s Quay and Buckley provide accessible ‘one stop shops’ at which
citizens can conduct most aspects of their business with the Council.

The ICT Strategy emphasises the role of the ICT service in relation to its internal
customers within the Council. A successful rationalisation of printers across Council
offices has, for example, saved paper costs, as has the introduction of i-Pads

for councillors. The Council’s key financial systems are generally fit for purpose.
However, the service has struggled to meet the demand for change with the result
that staff feel frustrated with some aspects of the service. The upgrading and
modernisation of some ICT systems have taken longer than expected, for example,
and staff involved in the ‘agile working’ pilot have found difficulties in accessing the
Council’s ICT systems from their homes.

The Council has acknowledged that, in the past, it has been reluctant to define the
intended benefits, both financial and non-financial, from large-scale technological
projects. The Council’s new operating model presents a significant opportunity

to improve this aspect and to manage the ICT service in a way that reflects clear
corporate priorities and which links more explicitly than before to the Council’s
strategic plans for its staff, its land and buildings and its finances.

Page 40

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



The Council made good progress against the improvement
priorities we looked at but its performance against the national
indicators declined slightly

89  This section of the report focuses on the performance of Council services and the
way in which the Council manages its performance. We provide an overview of
performance in 2013-14 as well as a more detailed assessment of progress against
a selection of the Council’'s Improvement Objectives. Where possible, these
evaluations draw on information that is more up to date than the 2013-14 data.

We also include a summary of the Performance Evaluation Report 2013-14,
produced by the Care and Social Service Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW), and the
Welsh Language Commissioner’s assessment of progress in Flintshire.

Flintshire schools continue to provide good value for money and the Council is
seeking further efficiency within the education system

90  The National Survey for Wales, conducted on behalf of the Welsh Government,
indicates that the public in Flintshire has more confidence in the local education
service than in any other council in Wales.

91 Results in Flintshire primary schools in 2014 consolidated the improvements of the
previous year. The proportion of seven-year olds achieving the expected standards
was slightly below the Wales average while the proportion of 11 year-olds
achieving the expected standards was the same as the Wales average at 84.5 per
cent. In secondary schools, 84.3 per cent of 14 year-olds achieved the core subject
indicator?, the fifth highest proportion among councils in Wales. At key stage 4,
performance fell slightly compared with 2013, but the proportion of 16 year-olds
who gained five or more good GCSE grades that included the important subjects of
mathematics and English or Welsh (first language) remained well above average
and was the third highest in Wales.

92  Eligibility for free school-meals — a proxy measure for levels of deprivation — is
well below the national average in Flintshire. We would therefore expect school
performance in Flintshire as a whole to be above national averages. Levels of
attainment in primary schools are therefore a little below what might be expected.
Performance in too many primary and secondary schools nevertheless compared
unfavourably with that in schools elsewhere in Wales with similar levels of
deprivation.

93  We reported last year that there had been a steady fall in the number of 16-year-
old school leavers in Flintshire who are not in employment, education or training.
However, in 2013 (the latest year for which data® is available), the proportion
increased sharply to 3.6 per cent, only marginally better than the national average.
Attendance rates in secondary schools have been among the best in Wales in
recent years and continue to compare favourably with the Wales average.

94 The Council is responsible for ensuring an adequate supply of school places in an
efficient manner. By merging infant and junior schools, the Council reduced the
number of primary schools it maintains from 71 to 68 during 2013. Nevertheless,
the capacity of the primary and secondary school systems increased slightly. In
January 2014, there were some 4,300 surplus places in Flintshire schools (15.9 per

4 Pupils achieve the core subject indicator when they attain the expected National Curriculum level for their age in mathematics,
science and English or Welsh (first language).
5  Careers Wales, http://www.careerswales.com/prof/server.php?show=nav.38?) age 4 1

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 27



95

96

97

98

99

cent of the total) distributed across the 80 schools. Surplus capacity remains lower

in Flintshire than the Wales average of 17 per cent, but the gap closed during 2013.
Thirty per cent of Flintshire schools have significant surplus capacity as defined by

the Welsh Government as compared with 24.7 per cent across Wales.

The Council continues to address the modernisation of its schools estate and
recognises the potential for further efficiencies. Plans to co-locate primary and
secondary schools on a single site in Holywell are innovative and likely to improve
significantly the working environment for pupils and staff. Prudent concerns about
the future viability of another secondary school have led to the postponement of
plans to refurbish the school.

As in previous years, the cost of Flintshire’s education system as a whole remains
well below that in most Welsh councils. For 2014-15, the Council set an education
budget (excluding specific grants) of £109.6 million, equivalent to £4,781 per pupil
compared with an average across Wales of £4,939 per pupil. Although there are
areas to improve, the broadly positive outcomes outlined above suggest that the
schools service continues to provide good value for money.

The Council has reviewed its school funding formula and implemented the resulting
changes. The Welsh Government® has calculated that, in 2014-15, the Council
delegated 81.3 per cent of relevant funding to its schools. This is a slightly lower
rate than in other councils in North Wales. The Council has recognised the need to
review the support services that it provides for schools and the way that they are
funded. This review process has the potential to increase the level of delegated
funding and increase schools’ accountability for procuring the level of support they
require.

We commented in last year’s annual improvement report that the Council was
spending more per pupil than any other council in Wales on placing pupils with
additional learning needs in schools outside Flintshire. For 2014-15, the planned
education element of expenditure on this item fell significantly to £2.5 million from
almost £3.5 million in 2013-14 following changes to commissioning arrangements.
Although much reduced, this budget still represents £110 per pupil when spread
across all pupils in Flintshire, the second highest such planned expenditure in
Wales. Furthermore, the Council reported that, by the end of the first month of
the new financial year, there was already a projected overspend of £227,000 on
budgets for out-of-county placements.

A paper to the Council’s Audit Committee in September 2014 shows that, in
2013-14, the Council spent a total of £6.89 million on out-of-county places across
both education and social services budgets, about £726,000 over budget. The
paper provides assurance to committee members that the Council’'s procurement
of places is effective. However, data within the paper about the number of
placements the Council supports is difficult to interpret and does not address the
issue comprehensively enough in the wider context of Flintshire’s own special
school provision.

6  Statistical Bulletin 49/2014, Knowledge and Analytical Services, Welsh iﬂgment. 42

28

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



100 We acknowledge that there will inevitably be a degree of volatility in the level of
spending on out-of-county placements. However, the extent of volatility from month
to month undermines the Council’s budgetary control. The frequent variances
also suggest that more might be done to improve the accuracy with which these
budgets are planned and managed.

There has been good progress in adult social services but the performance of
children’s services has been less consistent in the face of increasing demand

101 In October 2014, CSSIW published its Performance Evaluation Report 2013-14.
The evaluation is based on:

a information received from the Council;

b  performance data;

¢ discussion at quarterly engagement meetings with senior officers;
d inspections, reviews and site visits;

e intelligence from complaints and concerns;

f  information from other inspectorates and regulators; and

g inspections of regulated services commissioned by the Council.

102  The full report is available at cssiw.org.uk. We have summarised CSSIW’s
assessment of the Council’s performance below and draw on other aspects of their
evaluation elsewhere in this report.

103  More adults in Flintshire are using services that focus on prevention, rehabilitation
and re-ablement, with an increase of 46 per cent during the year in the number
of adults that the Council supports. The Council reports that well over half of the
people using its re-ablement services achieved full independence, no longer
requiring any further services.

104 Initiatives such as Well Check and Living Well support the Council’s continued
emphasis on promoting independence and wellbeing. Greater investment in
partnership working is increasingly leading to the development of suites of services
that are supporting more people in the community and fewer in residential care.
The Council is effective in monitoring any shortfalls in the quality of care that it
commissions and in seeking immediate corrective action.

105 People contacting the Council receive a timely response and, although there
have been some delays in supporting people to leave hospital when ready to do
so, performance remains better than the Wales average. Almost all service users
have timely reviews of their care plans, and Flintshire’s performance is the best in
Wales on this indicator. Timely reviews enable the Council to respond effectively to
changing requirements, improving both the quality and efficiency of the service.

Page 43

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 29



106

107

108

109

110

111

112

30

The Council has acknowledged that it needs to improve its ability to identify and
support those who are carers. This work continues but has yet to reach fruition.
The Council has commissioned the North East Wales Carers Information Service
to assist with this work.

The demand for children’s services increased significantly during 2013-14 with
the number of reported requests for assessment growing by over 70 per cent
during the year. Repeat referrals have fallen by 13 per cent and the Council has
maintained a timely response rate, making a decision within one working day on
over 99 per cent of referrals.

Numbers on the child protection register also rose sharply from 58 in 2012-13 to
133 in 2013-14. This had an impact on the Council’s capacity to provide the same
level of support as previously and the proportion of initial child protection case
conferences conducted within the required timescales fell from 97 per cent to 89
per cent.

The higher number of referrals led to an increase in the number of initial
assessments undertaken and a 40 per cent increase in the number of core
assessments. More children and young people than before were seen alone

by social workers, providing greater opportunity for them to express their views
and wishes. However, CSSIW found that some assessments were not routinely
updated and that a number of associated risk assessments were incomplete.

Fewer reviews of the needs of looked-after children took place within the required
timescale than in 2012-13, despite a small reduction in the number of reviews
due. There was an even greater reduction in the number of reviews for children in
need that were completed on time, with little more than half reaching the required
standard. This was the lowest rate in Wales.

Although there was an increase in the number of looked-after children and young
people during 2013-14, the proportion experiencing multiple placements fell and
is now among the best in Wales. The Council undertook all the required visits

to the children and young people it cares for, but the timeliness of these visits
deteriorated. The proportion of looked-after children receiving health assessments
remains among the lowest in Wales. The educational attainment of looked-after
children aged 16 continues on an upward trend but the outcomes for young adults
aged 19 who were formerly looked after is mixed.

CSSIW’s inspection of the Council’s Fostering Services was largely positive and
found that there was effective support provided by a stable and consistent team,
together with a well-organised fostering panel.

Page 44

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



113 In referring to partnership and collaboration, CSSIW judged that the Council is
increasingly realistic about the challenges posed by the need to deliver improving
services within the context of reducing financial resources. This has accelerated
the drive to greater efficiency, improving strategic partnership working, services
that are more integrated and a growing commitment to regional commissioning.
The Council is investing more in an early intervention approach that works in
partnership with key stakeholders to improve outcomes for children, young people
and families. Greater investment in partnership working is increasingly leading
to the development of suites of services that are supporting more people in the
community and fewer in residential care.

Overall performance against the national indicators declined slightly, but with
some strong performance across several service areas

114 We reviewed the Council’s performance for 2013-14 against the average for Wales
across a basket of 44 national indicators’. Based on this data, there has been
strong performance in several areas, but deteriorating performance in others. The
Council’s overall performance has declined slightly. For example:

a one key education indicator was the best in Wales in 2013, with 62.2 per cent
of pupils achieving five or more good GCSE grades that include English or
Welsh first language and mathematics;

b only 4.3 per cent of roads in Flintshire were in a poor condition, the lowest
proportion in Wales;

¢ the Council achieved top quartile performance in 13 national indicators, slightly
fewer than in 2012-13;

d performance against 23 of the 44 indicators was equal to or above the Welsh
average, a slight deterioration from 28 in 2012-13; and

e performance in Flintshire deteriorated compared with 2012-13 against almost
half of the national indicators.

115  The Council’'s 2013-14 Improvement Plan contained eight improvement priorities
and 98 secondary priorities. The Council reported good progress against just over
half (56 per cent) of the secondary priorities and satisfactory progress against
42 per cent with just two per cent making less-than-satisfactory progress during
2013-14.

116 Each year the Welsh Government undertakes a national survey to obtain the
views of the people of Wales on a range of issues including health, education and
local services. In the 2013-14 survey, 61 per cent of respondents agreed that the
Council provided high quality services. This was better than the Welsh average and
ranked the Council seventh among the 22 unitary authorities in Wales. The same
survey showed that 48 per cent of residents also think that the Council is good at
letting them know how it is performing.

7  Thirty National Strategic Indicators (NSls) and 24 Public Accountability Measures (PAMs), of which 10 are classified as both NSls

and PAMs. Pag e 45

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 31



The Council is making good progress in implementing initiatives to help mitigate
the impact of cuts to welfare benefits and to reduce fuel poverty

117

118

119

120

121

32

The Council made good progress during 2013-14 against its improvement priority
to increase local efforts to protect local people from poverty. The sub-priorities
underpinning this improvement priority focused on mitigating the impact of the
UK Government’s welfare reforms and tackling fuel poverty. The Council met or
exceeded all of its 2013-14 targets associated with these sub-priorities.

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 has brought significant change to the administration
and distribution of benefits and will have a major impact on many citizens. In April
2011, the UK Government embarked on a programme of reform, including the
phased introduction of Universal Credit between October 2013 and 2017. The
Government’s plans include changes to Housing Benefit which aim to reduce
annual expenditure by around £2.3 billion. These changes will mean that millions
of households in Great Britain will receive less in benefits, creating hard choices for
them about how they use their money and manage on a day-to-day basis.

The key changes introduced by the Welfare Reform Act 2012, in summary, are as
follows:

a the introduction of size criteria for the social rented sector, limiting Housing
Benefit payments (and later the housing costs element of Universal Credit) for
working-age households who under-occupy their homes;

b the household benefit cap, which imposes a limit to benefit claims for out-of-
work, working-age households;

¢ Universal Credit, which introduces a single monthly integrated benefit for
working-age households, both in and out of work, paid direct to claimants; and

d changes and cuts to support for Council Tax, devolving power to local
authorities to design and administer this benefit.

The Council has a robust plan in place to address the impact of welfare reform and
has established Flintshire Tackling Poverty Partnership to consider and respond

to the issues. This forum includes an appropriately wide range of stakeholders

to ensure full coverage of all issues, including organisations that are affected by
welfare reform and those that can play a positive role in addressing the impact.
The partnership monitors its performance and provides updates that feed into the
Council’s action plans.

The Council’s action plans focus explicitly on mitigating the financial and
operational impact of the reforms on individuals and agencies such as local
housing associations. Planning is well-informed by data collected from tenants in
order to understand the impact that the reforms have had and to try to mitigate
their impact. In many cases, the data obtained is comprehensive and the Council
has been able to use the process to help to provide more personalised advice and
support such as the completion of a budgeting tool, providing advice on utility bills,
and checking to ensure that all appropriate benefits are being claimed.

Page 46

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



122

123

124

125

126

The Council has a comprehensive set of local indicators to measure the impact of
its work and that of its partners in all areas of welfare reform. The Council and its
partners are able to demonstrate that they generated additional welfare benefit and
tax credit income for residents totalling £2.3 million in 2013-14, boosting household
income and spending power within the local economy and positively supporting the
tackling poverty agenda.

Welfare reform cuts across many different Council services and has many
different impacts on a wide range of organisations and individuals. To be effective,
therefore, the Council needs to ensure there is clear leadership on welfare reform
with appropriate governance and accountability to support policymaking, enable
effective scrutiny and hold services and the Cabinet to account. We found that
officers and councillors in Flintshire are fully aware of the performance monitoring
arrangements for welfare reform and they are clear about who is responsible for
the various strands of activity. Regular updates to scrutiny committees provide
members with the opportunity to oversee and challenge performance. The Council
has also trained staff across a wide and appropriate range of services in order to
increase their awareness of the key benefit changes and the wider community
impact.

Despite the good progress in mitigating the effects of poverty, the Council’s
corporate performance measures for poverty contain little reference to the
performance of the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction Scheme service.
This is a key service that helps over 12,000 low income households in Flintshire to
pay their rent and Council Tax. An assessment of the quality of the administration
of the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction Scheme has the potential to
further improve the Council’s overall evaluation of its performance in tackling
poverty among Flintshire’s residents.

In 2013-14, the speed of processing Housing Benefit claims and the accuracy of
assessments declined compared with the previous year. The average time taken by
the Council to process new claims increased from an average of 16 days in 2012-
13 to 20 days in 2013-14, even though there was no significant increase in the size
of the caseload and the number of new claims has reduced as unemployment has
fallen. Partly as a result of more stringent processes to identify errors, Internal Audit
reports show that the accuracy in processing claims in Flintshire fell to 60 per cent.

The Council is attempting to maximise help from the UK Government for people
faced with a shortfall in their Housing Benefit. Households experiencing a shortfall
between benefit entittiement and rent can apply to the Council for a Discretionary
Housing Payment (DHP). Flintshire Council has actively promoted DHP as an
important source of funding to address the impact of the social housing size
criteria. The UK Government allocates funding according to a formula. Councils
that decide to top up the UK Government’s allocation with their own funds receive
a larger allocation the following year. Unlike most councils in the UK, the Council
chose to spend more than its allocation in 2012-13, and therefore received an
increase of £148,000 in its 2013-14 allocation, allowing it to help more people
facing a shortfall in their rent.

Page 47

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

33



127

128

129

130

The Council’'s second poverty sub-priority was to tackle fuel poverty. The Council
has met or exceeded all of its 2013-14 service targets associated with this work,
having previously developed a comprehensive set of local indicators to measure
the impact of its work.

The Council helped residents in the private sector, working in partnership with
neighbouring authorities (Wrexham, Denbighshire and Conwy councils ) and
housing associations, to launch a regional Energy Company Obligation (ECO)
framework, initially focussed on social housing external wall insulation works. A
total of 104 owner-occupied or private rented homes had insulation or heating
works in 2013-14. In addition, the Affordable Warmth Fund was introduced through
the Housing Renewal Strategy, leading to the improved insulation of 87 Council
properties. In total, the Council secured over £1 million in 2013-14 in external grant
funding for fuel efficiency schemes.

The Council has an ambitious programme for 2014-15 including large-scale gas
infill projects in Aston and Mostyn which will help 223 Council tenant households to
receive less expensive gas heating and potentially help a further 700 private sector
households living in the gas catchment area.

Increasing awareness of how to avoid fuel poverty is an important strand of the
Council’s work to tackle fuel poverty. The Home Energy Conservation Team leads
on Flintshire’s Affordable Warmth Partnership, providing professional training and
advice to people on good energy efficiency practice. The team advises tenants and
the general public on grant availability, getting the best deal from energy suppliers,
and the most effective potential improvements to properties in order to reduce fuel
bills and help keep their homes warm. The Home Energy Team also designs and
delivers training and education programmes to a wide variety of audiences in order
to raise the profile and increase the uptake of energy efficiency measures.

The Council’s performance in preventing homelessness has improved but
there has been little progress in the length of time people spend in temporary
accommodation

131

132

34

A further strand of the tackling poverty improvement priority focuses on preventing
people from becoming homeless. As we reported last year in our Annual
Improvement Report, councils across Wales are accepting fewer households as
homeless. The situation in Flintshire continues to reflect this trend, despite an
increase in the number of people seeking assistance since 2012. During 2013-14,
the number of households accepted by the Council as homeless and in priority
need was again one of the lowest in Wales. On average, fewer than 50 homeless
households in the County were in temporary accommodation during the year.

In 2013-14, the Council’s performance in taking action to prevent homelessness
improved. The Council helped 85 per cent of potentially homeless households from
becoming homeless during the year compared to 83 per cent in 2012-13. Council
reports during 2014 indicate that performance has subsequently continued to
improve.

Page 48

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



133  The Council allocates homeless households to self-contained Council or private
sector properties while a suitable permanent social housing property is identified
and the homeless duty can be discharged. In some cases the household may be
able to stay in the temporary accommodation and have it allocated permanently to
reduce the upheaval of moving again.

134  The Council has set itself a challenging target that, by 2016, no homeless person
will be in temporary accommodation for more than 12 months. However, the
average time that homeless households spent in temporary accommodation in
Flintshire has increased from 208 days in 2011-12 to 276 days in 2013-14. The
Council attributes some of this deterioration to an increased demand for homes
with fewer bedrooms from existing social housing tenants anxious to avoid rent
arrears arising from cuts to their housing benefit because of the so-called ‘bedroom
tax’. This reduces the supply of smaller properties, which are also in demand from
homeless households.

135 As part of its strategy to tackle homelessness the Council is taking action to
ensure a sufficient supply of good quality, affordable homes. It set a target of
740 new affordable home completions between 2012 and 2017 and is on track
to achieve this target following the recent completion of two extra-care housing
schemes in Flint and Holywell and the reform of Housing Revenue Account
Subsidy which, following its implementation in April 2015, will allow the Council to
borrow funds in order to build new Council housing. In addition to its own efforts to
provide affordable homes, the Council is working closely with partners to identify
opportunities for increasing the future supply of affordable housing. In particular,
the Council has recently established a Housing Company, North East Wales
Homes, to help it meet its local housing strategy targets across a range of tenures.

136  The Council's housing improvement programme is on target to meet the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard® (WHQS) by 2020. Although only 24 Council homes
(out of over 7,400 homes) in Flintshire were fully WHQS compliant by the end of
2013-14, the Council’s performance against individual elements of the housing
improvement programme has continued to improve. Many more homes are
partially compliant because of the work already completed, allowing many tenants
to benefit from homes that are more comfortable to live in and cheaper to run. For
example, by the end of 2013-14, 53 per cent of kitchens, 50 per cent of bathrooms,
78 per cent of heating systems and 71 per cent of windows in the Council’'s
housing stock met the standard.

137  The Council has worked well with its partners in the LSB to facilitate better sharing
of information and referrals between partners and, in consequence, the better
targeting of services. For example, a care and repair programme which provides
services to people over the age of 60 and to adults with disabilities has increased
the number of clients able to live independently. Another example includes the
targeting of home fire-safety checks and the installation of smoke alarms in the
homes of vulnerable people.

8  To meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard, social housing must satisfy a range of criteria. For example, homes must be in a
good state of repair, be safe and secure, have up-to-date kitchens and bathrooms and be adequately heated, fuel efficient and well
insulated. All elements must meet the minimum acceptable standard for a hCﬁe to beélasz‘[igas WHQS-compliant.

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 35



The Council continues to make progress in improving the Welsh language
capability of its staff but it recognises that progress is not consistent across the
whole Council

138 The Welsh Language Commissioner has told us that there has been a small
increase in the number of frontline Council staff who speak Welsh fluently. There
has also been an increase in the number of staff who received Welsh language
training since 2012-13, but the number remains lower than the numbers who
received training in 2011-12 and 2010-11. There was a drop in the number of
staff who received language awareness training. The Council had committed to
ensuring that the entire workforce had completed a self-assessment of capability in
Welsh by March 2014 but this has not yet been achieved.

139 The Council has introduced a new system in order to manage training more
effectively. It has also reviewed the way in which Welsh language training is
provided, in consultation with Menter laith Sir y Fflint. As a result, a new intensive
programme will be introduced for beginners, supported by online learning and
conversation practice sessions. Welsh Language Champions were appointed
within the Community Services Directorate, prior to the introduction of the Council’s
new operating model, with the aim of identifying other champions throughout the
Council and developing a Welsh Language Champions Forum during 2014-15.

140  The Council also plans to include Welsh language development needs within its
new appraisal system. This positive feature has the potential to support the Council
in meeting its Welsh Language Standards.

Page 50

36 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



The Council’s track record suggests that it is likely to respond
positively to the internal and significant external challenges

it faces and make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement for 2015-16

141 In this final section of the report, the Auditor General gives his opinion on
the likelihood that the Council will make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the year ahead, in accordance with the requirements of the
Measure.

142 We reached this conclusion based on the earlier findings within this report. In
particular, we have reported that:

a the Council made good progress against the improvement priorities we looked
at but its performance against the national indicators declined slightly;

b  despite some strengths and areas of progress, aspects of the Council’s
arrangements are not fully supporting decision-making and the delivery of the
Council’s agreed priorities; and

¢ the Council has taken significant strides forward in its use of resources but now
needs to co-ordinate the elements more systematically in the face of future
financial challenges.

143 In reaching our conclusion, we have also considered the Council’s positive
response to our early feedback on our work and the positive potential of its new
operating model.

144 We would like to thank the Council’s staff and elected members for their assistance
during our Corporate Assessment.

Page 51

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

37



Appendix 1 — Status of this report

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure) requires the Auditor
General to undertake an annual improvement assessment, and to publish an annual
improvement report, for each improvement Council in Wales. This requirement covers
local councils, national parks, and fire and rescue authorities.

This report has been produced by staff of the Wales Audit Office on behalf of the Auditor
General to discharge his duties under section 24 of the Measure. The report also
discharges his duties under section 19 to issue a report certifying that he has carried

out an improvement assessment under section 18 and stating whether, as a result of his
improvement plan audit under section 17, he believes that the Council has discharged its
improvement planning duties under section 15.

Improvement authorities are under a general duty to ‘make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the exercise of [their] functions’. Improvement authorities are
defined as local councils, national parks, and fire and rescue authorities.

The annual improvement assessment is the main piece of work that enables the

Auditor General to fulfil his duties. The improvement assessment is a forward-looking
assessment of a Council’s likelihood to comply with its duty to make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement. It also includes a retrospective assessment of whether
a Council has achieved its planned improvements in order to inform a view as to the
Council’s track record of improvement. The Auditor General will summarise his audit and
assessment work in a published Annual Improvement Report for each Council (under
section 24).

The Auditor General may also in some circumstances carry out special inspections
(under section 21), which will be reported to the Council and Ministers, and which he may
publish (under section 22). An important ancillary activity for the Auditor General is the co-
ordination of assessment and regulatory work (required by section 23), which takes into
consideration the overall programme of work of all relevant regulators at an improvement
Council. The Auditor General may also take account of information shared by relevant
regulators (under section 33) in his assessments.

Page 52

38 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Appendix 2 — Audit of Flintshire County

Council’s 2014-15 Improvement Plan

Certificate

| certify that | have audited the 2014-15 Improvement Plan produced by Flintshire County
Council (the Council) in accordance with section 17 of the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009 (the Measure) and my Code of Audit Practice.

As a result of my audit, | believe that the Council has discharged its duties under section
15(6) to (9) of the Measure and has acted in accordance with Welsh Government
guidance sufficiently to discharge its duties.

Respective responsibilities of the Council and the Auditor
General

Under the Measure, the Council is required to prepare and publish an Improvement Plan
describing its plans to discharge its duties to:

a make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise of its functions;
b make arrangements to secure achievement of its improvement objectives; and

¢ make arrangements to exercise its functions so that any performance standard
specified by Welsh Ministers is met.

The Measure requires the Council to publish its Improvement Plan as soon as is
reasonably practicable after the start of the financial year to which it relates, or after such
other date as Welsh Ministers may specify by order.

The Council is responsible for preparing the Improvement Plan and for the information
set out within it. The Measure requires that the Council has regard to guidance issued by
Welsh Ministers in preparing and publishing its plan.

As the Council’s auditor, | am required under sections 17 and 19 of the Measure to
carry out an audit of the Improvement Plan, to certify that | have done so, and to report
whether | believe that the Council has discharged its duties to prepare and publish an
Improvement Plan in accordance with statutory requirements set out in section 15 and
statutory guidance.

Scope of the Improvement Plan audit

For the purposes of my audit work | will accept that, provided a Council meets its
statutory requirements, it will also have complied with Welsh Government statutory
guidance sufficiently to discharge its duties.

For this audit | am not required to form a view on the completeness or accuracy of
information, or whether the Improvement Plan published by the Council can be achieved.
Other assessment work that | will undertake under section 18 of the Measure will
examine these issues. My audit of the Council’s Improvement Plan, therefore, comprised
a review of the plan to ascertain whether it included elements prescribed in legislation.

| also assessed whether the arrangements for publishing the plan complied with the
requirements of the legislation, and that the Council had regard to statutory guidance in
preparing and publishing its plan.

Page 53

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

39



The work | have carried out in order to report and make recommendations in accordance
with sections 17 and 19 of the Measure cannot solely be relied upon to identify all
weaknesses or opportunities for improvement.

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Auditor General For Wales

CC: Lesley Griffiths, Minister for Local Government and Government Business
Huw Lloyd Jones, Manager

Paul Goodlad, Performance Audit Lead

Page 54

40 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Appendix 3 — Audit of Flintshire County
Council’s assessment of 2013-14 performance

Certificate

| certify that | have audited Flintshire County Council’s (the Council) assessment of its
performance in 2013-14 in accordance with section 17 of the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009 (the Measure) and my Code of Audit Practice.

As a result of my audit, | believe that the Council has discharged its duties under
sections 15(2), (3), (8) and (9) of the Measure and has acted in accordance with Welsh
Government guidance sufficiently to discharge its duties.

Respective responsibilities of the Council and the Auditor
General

Under the Measure, the Council is required to annually publish an assessment which
describes its performance:

a in discharging its duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
exercise of its functions;

b in meeting the improvement objectives it has set itself;

¢ by reference to performance indicators specified by Welsh Ministers, and self-imposed
performance indicators; and

d in meeting any performance standards specified by Welsh Ministers, and self-imposed
performance standards.

The Measure requires the Council to publish its assessment before 31 October in the
financial year following that to which the information relates, or by any other such date as
Welsh Ministers may specify by order.

The Measure requires that the Council has regard to guidance issued by Welsh Ministers
in publishing its assessment.

As the Council’s auditor, | am required under sections 17 and 19 of the Measure to carry
out an audit to determine whether the Council has discharged its duty to publish an
assessment of performance, to certify that | have done so, and to report whether | believe
that the Council has discharged its duties in accordance with statutory requirements set
out in section 15 and statutory guidance.

Page 55

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

41



Scope of the audit

For the purposes of my audit work | will accept that, provided a Council meets its
statutory requirements, it will also have complied with Welsh Government statutory
guidance sufficiently to discharge its duties.

For this audit | am not required to form a view on the completeness or accuracy of
information. Other assessment work that | will undertake under section 18 of the Measure
may examine these issues. My audit of the Council’'s assessment of performance,
therefore, comprised a review of the Council’s publication to ascertain whether it included
elements prescribed in legislation. | also assessed whether the arrangements for
publishing the assessment complied with the requirements of the legislation, and that the
Council had regard to statutory guidance in preparing and publishing it.

The work | have carried out in order to report and make recommendations in accordance
with sections 17 and 19 of the Measure cannot solely be relied upon to identify all
weaknesses or opportunities for improvement.

Recommendations under the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009

There are no recommendations arising from the audit of Flintshire County Council’s
assessment of 2013-14 performance.

Huw Vaughan Thomas
Auditor General for Wales

CC: Leighton Andrews, Minister for Public Services
Huw Lloyd Jones, Manager

Paul Goodlad, Performance Audit Lead

Page 56

42 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Appendix 4 — Annual Audit Letter — Flintshire
County Council 2013-14

Councillor Aaron Shotton
Colin Everett

Flintshire County Council
County Hall

Mold

Flintshire

CH7 6NB

Dear Aaron and Colin,

Annual Audit Letter — Flintshire County Council 2013-14

This letter summarises the key messages arising from my statutory responsibilities
under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 as the Appointed Auditor and my reporting
responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice.

The Council complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and
use of resources

It is the Council’s responsibility to:

a put systems of internal control in place to ensure the regularity and lawfulness of
transactions and to ensure that its assets are secure;

b maintain proper accounting records;
c prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant requirements; and

d establish and keep under review appropriate arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to:

a provide an audit opinion on the accounting statements;

b review the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources; and

c issue a certificate confirming that | have completed the audit of the accounts.

Local authorities in Wales prepare their accounting statements in accordance with the
requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom. This code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards.
On 30 September 2014, | issued an unqualified audit opinion on the accounting
statements confirming that they present a true and fair view of the Council’s and the
Pension Fund'’s financial position and transactions. My report is contained within the
Statement of Accounts. The key matters arising from the accounts audit were reported to
members of Flintshire County Council in my Audit of Financial Statements reports on 24
September 2014 and are summarised below:

Page 57

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council 43



a Records relating to non-current assets are insufficiently detailed within the Council’s
asset register to allow the easy identification of individual assets across all asset
categories. This has potential implications for both the accounting of assets and
the existence and use of them. The Council were able to provide us with enough
information to issue an unqualified opinion on the accounts, but the Council could
usefully improve the quality of the asset register.

b The Council continued to make improvements to the quality of its accounts although
we identified some issues in respect of expenditure cut off (ie, accounting for
transactions in the correct period) and classification of balances relating to deposits.

¢ Based on legal advice available to it, the Council did not fully recognise a liability
for pension contributions on its equal pay liabilities. This is contrary to legal advice
received by the Appointed Auditor which suggests that pension contributions should
be paid on payment to resolve equal pay claims. Given the diverging legal views
and uncertainty regarding the need to recognise a provision, the Appointed Auditor
concluded that he would not take any further action as part of the 2013-2014 audit of
accounts.

d Whilst we did not identify any specific issues, it is essential that the Council, in its role
as the administering authority, continues to work closely with its Employer Bodies
(including Flintshire, Wrexham and Denbighshire Councils as well as a number of
smaller bodies) to ensure that pension fund membership records are up to date and
accurately record data for active, deferred and pensioner records. This is important
both for the individuals concerned and also to the Employer bodies in ensuring
that they account for pension obligations correctly within their respective financial
statements.

The Council is required to provide Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) under the HM
Treasury’s Whole of Government Accounts (Designation of Bodies) Order. The Council
submitted its WGA return by the due date. We reviewed the return and identified no
issues that we wish to draw to your attention.

It is also worth noting the Council lead on the preparation of the accounts of the North
Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee and the Taith Regional Transport consortia. On
30 September | issued unqualified opinions on both sets of accounts confirming that
they present a true and fair view of the respective Joint Committees’ financial position
and transactions. The key matters arising from the accounts audit were reported to the
members of the respective Committees in my Audit of Financial Statements reports. | do
not need to bring anything to your attention in this letter.

| am satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

My consideration of the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness has been based on the audit work undertaken on the accounts as well as
placing reliance on the work completed as part of the Improvement Assessment under
the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009. The Auditor General will highlight areas
where the effectiveness of these arrangements has yet to be demonstrated or where
improvements could be made when he publishes his Annual Improvement Report.
This year, the Annual Improvement Report will include the findings of the Corporate
Assessment undertaken in September 2014.

Page 58

44 Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council



Prior to 2014-15 the Council has a track record of accurately identifying and meeting its
budget shortfall on an annualised basis. In establishing its 2014-15 budget the Council
put in place a major structural review to yield savings from corporate and functional
efficiencies as well as organisational design which focussed on both structure and
workforce. The Council currently projects that a good proportion of the planned savings
are likely to be achieved, but the first phase of the Voluntary Redundancy Programme did
not yield the anticipated savings and a second phase is currently being worked through.
There is a residual risk that, if permanent savings cannot be identified, an underlying
budget shortfall will be carried through to 2015-16 onwards, adding to the pressures in
future years.

The Council continues to strengthen its financial planning arrangements but at the

same time faces unprecedented levels of austerity. Following details of the Welsh Local
Government settlement for 2015-16, the Council now faces a budget gap of £16.4 million
in 2015-16. The gap may be exacerbated by the shortfall in 2014-15, resulting in the need
for a level of cuts not previously encountered.

The Council, particularly through the collective work of both Cabinet and the new Chief
Officer Team, is developing detailed three year service business plans which form the
basis of the proposals to deal with this significant shortfall. However, the scale of the
budget gap and the uncertainties that remain mean that the Council’s ability to set a
balanced and achievable budget for 2015-16 remains extremely challenging, as does the
outlook for future years. | have previously expressed concern over the annualised nature
of the financial planning, so it is positive to note that the Council’s business plans will now
form the basis of planning for 2016-17 and beyond, as well as 2015-16, and that this will
be considered in the context of the 2015-16 budget.

| issued a certificate confirming that the audit of the accounts has been completed
on 30 September 2013. | also issued a completion certificate for the Joint
Committees on the same date.

My work to date on certification of grant claims and returns has not identified
significant issues that would impact on the 2014-15 accounts or key financial
systems

In September 2014, the Audit Committee considered my Certification of Grants and
Returns 2012-13 report which confirmed that the Council has adequate arrangements

in place for the preparation and submission of its grant claims. However, 65 per cent of
claims were either amended and/or qualified and the Council needs to further strengthen
its arrangements. To assist in this, and following the delivery of grants training to
relevant officers, we issued Grants feedback memorandums for each claim to identify
improvements in respect of individual grants.

My programme of audit work on the 2013-14 grant claims is currently underway and

| will issue a more detailed report on my grant certification work in Spring 2015 once
this year’s programme of certification work is complete. | will be conducting follow up
work to determine whether the areas of improvement identified in our 2012-13 feedback
memorandums have been addressed.

The financial audit fee for 2013-14 is currently expected to be in line with the agreed fee
set out in the Annual Audit Outline.

Yours sincerely

John Herniman
For and on behalf of the Appointed Auditor

Page 59

Annual Improvement Report — Flintshire County Council

45



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@wao.gov.uk

Website: www.wao.gov.uk

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon Testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: info@wao.gov.uk

Gwefan: www.wao.gov.uk



Wales Audit Office Annual Improvement Report

March 2015

Executive Response

The Wales Audit Office’s Annual Improvement Report and Corporate Assessment is, overall,
a fair and positive summary of the position of the Council. The report is a welcome
endorsement of a full year of improved improvement reporting following the introduction of this

year’s Improvement Plan.

There are no new statutory recommendations. The proposals for improvement are already
well advanced in our commitment and activity for response. Listed below are the seven
proposals for improvement along with our response.

Proposal for Improvement (P1-7)

Response

P1

The Council should develop and
implement a (more) consistent
approach to business planning that
promotes the ownership by staff of key
objectives and targets.

A review of strategic and operational business
planning is underway. The review covers review and
republication of the suite of key corporate documents
— Improvement Plan, Governance Plan, Medium Term
Financial Plan and a new Corporate Resourcing plan;
a review of the comprehensive of the set of portfolio
strategic plans which drive policy and priorities (e.g.
the Housing Business Plan); a review of the format,
consistency and quality of operational business plan
reports. This review will have staged outcomes with
the first working deadline being June for the suite of
revised key corporate documents.

P2

The Council should improve the

quality of its reports to committees

and Cabinet to ensure that:

e where necessary, reports enable
councillors to refer easily to
relevant policies and previous
decisions and discussions

o key messages and
recommendations are clear and
succinct; and

A review of report format, style and quality of
presentation is under way. A pilot of an improved
format will be recommended. The improved format will
include use of executive summaries and fuller
exploration of risk in assessing options for decisions.
Fuller use of hyperlinks will be made to avoid
publishing extensive appendices where this can be
avoided.

Updated report writing guidelines are being produced.

e reports to scrutiny committees | Refresher report writing training will be offered.
include recommendations  or | Quality assurance systems for report approval are
options that committees might | being improved.
endorse.

P3

The Council should ensure that, in

implementing its revised strategies

for People, ICT and Asset

Management:

¢ their financial implications feed into
the medium-term financial plan;
and

As P1 above noting:-

e a single corporate resourcing plan is being
developed for June as part of the suite of key
corporate documents. This plan will prioritise the
allocation of corporate resources for change
projects

e a comprehensive approach to programme

Page 61




o the links between the strategies
are fully considered so that
specialist staff are available when
required.

management for officer portfolios where
significant change needs to be led, co-ordinated
and managed with a set of 8 programme
management boards

e acomprehensive and more usable Medium, Term
Financial Plan in a new graphic format for June

P4

Group Leaders should strongly
encourage members to take
advantage of the Member
Development Scheme.

A review of the member development programme is
underway with the aim of having a broader offer for
members in partnership with the Welsh Local
Government Association. Group Leaders are being
requested to promote take-up of training opportunities
amongst their respective groups.

P5

The Council should take the
opportunity of its review of scrutiny
structures to ensure that Overview
and Scrutiny committees can add
real value to Council decision-making
by aligning agendas more explicitly to
Council priorities and risks.

A Task and Finish Group has been set up by the
Constitution Committee to review the number and
terms of reference of Overview and Scrutiny
Committees. The Group will report to the Annual
General Meeting of the Council.

Forward work programmes are to include major and
higher risk annual budget proposals which require
monitoring and assessment of impact, major service
reviews included in the budget, and periodic review of
the achievement of improvement priorities. Report
formats are being reviewed as P2 above to make
reports more purposeful.

P6

The Council should:

e adopt a consistent approach to
managing risk, ensuring that all
staff involved use a similar
approach to record impact,
likelihood and mitigating actions;
and

e apply this approach to its future
savings plans

Following an earlier internal review of risk
management led by Internal Audit a number of actions
are in train for the organisation to be more consistent
and effective in the identification and reporting of risk
at strategic, operational, project and partnership
levels. P1 and P3 above will contribute.

P7

The Council should ensure a
consistent approach to workforce
planning and use the results to inform
future reductions in staff

The new appraisal model as presented to the
Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is being implemented to support talent
recognition, retention and progression. Intelligence
from this renewed appraisal programme will inform
the training and development programme.

Workforce planning risks are being assessed in each
Chief Officer portfolio area as part of the revised
People Strategy.

Pagé 62




FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 5

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND RESOURCES)

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH
10)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

2.00

2.01

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

To provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15

(Month 10) report.

BACKGROUND

The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 10) report will be
presented to Cabinet on 21 April 2015. A copy of the report is

attached as Appendix A to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Page 63



9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 10) report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 64



Appendix A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: I12_0E)VENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2014/15 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at month 10 and projected forward to year-end based
on the most up to date information available.

INDEX OF CONTENTS

1.02 Section 2 Executive Summary

Section 3 Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast

Section 4 Carry Forward Requests

Section 5 Inflation

Section 6 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & Risks

Section 7 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 8 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Appendix 1 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 9
Appendix 2 | Council Fund Variance Summary

Appendix 3 | Efficiencies Summary

Appendix 4 | Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves
Appendix 5 | HRA Variance Summary

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01 The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 10 is as follows:

Council Fund

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.716m lower than budget.
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2015 of £4.657m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.354m less than budget.
¢ Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2015 of £1.519m

Page 65



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

Appendix A

COUNCIL FUND LATEST FORECAST

The table below shows the projected position by portfolio which reflects the
Council’'s new Operating Model which came into effect on 1 June 2014.

As previously reported, following the implementation of the Single Status agreement
in June 2014, extensive work has been undertaken to rebase all workforce budgets
to reflect the actual new costs arising from the new pay and grading structure. This
work is now complete and revised workforce budgets have now been allocated to
portfolio areas to meet the costs of their workforce establishment (base pay,
allowances and vacancies). The outcome of this work is now reflected in the
figures below.

The table below shows projected in year expenditure to be £1.716m less than
budget.

In-Year Over/
(Under) spend
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised | Projected
AND INCOME Budget | Budget | Outturn Month | Month
9 10
£m £m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.889 | 58.568 58.6567 | 0.046 | (0.011)
Community & Enterprise 14.368 | 13.591 12.775 | (0.842) | (0.816)
Streetscene &
Transportation 28.381 | 29.485 29.619 | 0.158 0.134
Planning & Environment 6.394 5.806 5.596 | (0.165) | (0.210)
Education & Youth 97.167 | 96.539 96.811 | 0.046 0.272
People & Resources 5.395 4.901 4.895 | (0.008) | (0.006)
Governance 8.821 8.452 8.606 | 0.180 0.154
Organisational Change 9.738 | 10.027 10.174 | 0.109 0.147
Chief Executive 2.160 3.253 3.157 | (0.096) | (0.096)
Central & Corporate
Finance 22.863 | 24.554 23.270 | (1.406) | (1.284)
Total 255.176 | 255.176 | 253.460 | (1.978) | (1.716)

The reasons for all movements from Month 9 are summarised in appendix 1 with
the projected variances occurring for the year to date summarised within appendix
2.

Significant Budget Movement Between month 9 to month 10

Changes in revised budget from month 9 relate mainly to adjustments relating to the

Page 66



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

4.00

4.01

Appendix A

single status rebasing exercise and to workforce efficiency accounting adjustments.

The movement from Month 9 is mainly due to John Summers High School no
longer being progressed within the 21t Century Schools Programme as agreed at
Cabinet on 17" February 2015. Costs incurred on this scheme which would have
usually been classified as capital, as part of the overall delivery programme, will
now have to be met from revenue with the overall position that this has resulted in a
decrease in the overall revenue underspend by £0.250m in Month 10.

Programme of Efficiencies
Corporate and Functional Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget contains £8.8m of specific efficiencies comprising Corporate
Value for Money (VFM) on Procurement and Back to Basics of £1.3m and specific
Functional VFM efficiencies of £7.5m.

The table below summarises the latest position for the achievement of these
specific efficiency programmes which includes a projected under achievement of
the VFM efficiency relating to the Review of Administrative Support.

The analysis shows that it is currently projected that £7.688m (87%) will be
achieved resulting in a net underachievement of £1.152m. Details for the current

year efficiencies currently projected to not be achieved in full are shown in appendix
3.

Value of | Value of
Status of Efficiency Budgeted | Projected | (Under) Over

Efficiency | Efficiency | Achievement

£m £m £m

Already Achieved 1.772 1.772 0.000
Expected to be Achieved in Full 4.917 4,917 0.000
Achievable in Part 2.101 0.999 (1.102)
Not Achievable 0.050 0.000 (0.050)
Total 8.840 7.688 (1.152)

Workforce Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget also contains £3.1m of Workforce Efficiencies. The overall net
underachievement on all workforce related efficiencies (including admin support) is
£0.211m after taking into account lower than anticipated exit costs. This has
increased by £0.091m due to a decrease in efficiencies of £0.063m and an increase
in exit costs of £0.028m.

CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS

Governance — A carry forward for £0.019m is requested for software maintenance

Page 67



4.02

4.03

4.04

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

Appendix A

within ICT. The contract for Geographic Information System (GIS)/Mapping
products is to be renegotiated in 2015/16. The 2014/15 costs will not be invoiced
until a new contract is agreed. A number of options are being considered in April
2015 and the contract option chosen will affect the amount invoiced for 2014/15.

Previously agreed brought forward balances

Organisational Change - request to carry forward £0.049m in relation to online
payment for school meals. In 2013/14 funding of £0.083m was agreed for this
project, however due to capacity within ICT this has not yet been rolled out to all
schools. A balance of £0.049m remains from the initial agreed funding.

People & Resources — in 2013/14 a carry forward request of £0.010m was granted
for the purchase of Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) software. The amount is no
longer required for DBS software however a change of use for this amount is being
requested as there is a development requirement for iTrent.

Governance — request to carry forward £0.046m for provision of Event and Log
Management solutions. In 2013/14 funding of £0.046m was agreed for the provision
of Event and Log Management solutions. Implementation has been delayed due to
ICT capacity.

INFLATION

Included within the 2014/15 budget are provisions for pay (£1.316m), targeted price
inflation (£0.590m), non-standard inflation (£0.670m) and income (£0.151m).

The amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) (Fuel, Energy and Food) are held
centrally and allocated out to portfolio areas only where a funding need is
evidenced. Allocations of NSI have been made to departments where there has
been an evidenced need, this has resulted in an underspend of £0.156m on the
amount required for fuel, an underspend of £0.054m on the amount required for
food, together with an underspend of £0.065m on the amount required for Non-
Domestic Rates.

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND RISKS

Emerging Risks

e Recycling - The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a
volatile period with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This is likely to impact on
2015/16 recycling income levels for the Council. There is a risk of under
achieving 2015/16 income targets. Status: unstable/amber risk

e Contingency Budgets - £0.050m to £0.100m is potentially required to support
two sensitive multi-agency operations in child protection and adult social
care. One operation is concluding and the other is ongoing. Status:
unstable/amber risk.

Existing risks

Page 68



6.03

Appendix A

Out of County Placements — the risk is the volatility in demand and the
impacts on service costs which cannot be predicted. Service fluctuations are
being accommodated within the combined budgets of the Social Services
and Education Chief Officer portfolios in-year. Status: stable/amber risk

Former Euticals Site — the risks are the significant cost options for the
decommissioning, decontamination and clearance of the former chemical
site in Sandycroft and the cost burden for the Council. Monthly costs for
ongoing security and maintenance of the site are in the region of £0.030m
and are accumulating within the financial year. Costs incurred within 2014/15
for the phase 1 decontamination of the site are estimated at £0.800m. The
total projected cost for the whole operation, combining costs incurred to date,
phase 1 decontamination, and phase 2 site disposal, are in the region of
£1.7m. Negotiations with the Welsh Government have successfully led to
the award of a significant grant to co-fund the project costs. The Council can
now proceed with the two phase plan to close the risks to public health
through site clearance and disposal. A full report will be made to the April
meeting of Cabinet. Status: unstable/amber risk.

Schools ICT Infrastructure — the risk is the loss of schools income from
buying into the service due to a planned change to delivery of ICT in schools.
The new service model is at an advanced stage of planning with the full
involvement of schools and is to be adopted shortly with a good degree of
confidence. Status: stable/amber risk

Single Status — The rebasing of the workforce establishment budget is
substantially complete without any adverse impact on revenue budget
provision. Similarly the position of the single status reserve shows that it is
sufficient to meet any outstanding liabilities. Status: stable/green risk.

Council Tax — the risk is the volatility of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
and collection rates as it is customer demand and compliance led. A budget
under-spend reported under Community Enterprise in appendix 2 and is
based on current usage patterns. Status: stable/green risk

Changes to previously reported risks (closed)

Workforce Efficiencies — the risk is the under achievements of workforce
financial efficiency targets. As reported to Cabinet in January the exercise to
review and readjust the targets, and build in the implications into the 2014/15
budget and the 2015/16 draft budget has been completed. The risk has been
mitigated.

Winter Maintenance — the risk is the additional cost of managing the
highways network should we experience a severe winter. At the year end the
winter can be classed as an average one which should mean that the budget
provision is sufficient. The number of planned salting turnouts exceeded that
required in an average year but this was cancelled out by the number of
snow affected days which was lower than an average year. The ring fenced
reserve will not be required and will need to be carried forward in to next

Page 69



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

8.00

8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

9.00

Appendix A

financial year. This seasonal risk has passed.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15 July 2014 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2014 (above the base level of £5.834m) of
£5.328m.

This position reflected a contribution of £0.745m made from reserves as part of an
accounting adjustment for termination benefits arising from the workforce
efficiencies for the Senior Management Phase 1 programme. As budget provision
was made within the 2014/15 budget for this, this has now been transferred back
into reserves in the current financial year.

Section 6.05 of the 2014/15 budget report outlined the investment strategy required
to fund one off costs and transitional funding for efficiencies that could not be found
in full in 2014/15. This identified a potential £3.7m available to fund these from the
contingency reserve as well as utilising the Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve.

Currently it is estimated that £2.5m will be required from the Contingency Reserve
to fund the one off costs in 2014/15.

The Month 2 Monitoring report to Cabinet on 15™ July also advised members of an
allocation of £0.696 from the contingency reserve to fund investment costs
approved under delegated powers.

Taking into account all of the above and the current projected outturn at month 10,

the projected balance on the contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 is £4.657m.
This is summarised in Appendix 4.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 18t February 2014 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget for 2014/15 of £29.886m. The budget provided for a closing balance of
£0.956m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15™ July 2014 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2013/14 of £1.662m.

The position at Month 10 is reporting an overall projected underspend of £0.354m
and a projected closing balance at month 10 of £1.519m, which at 5.06% of total
expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Appendix 5 details the reasons for significant variances.

RECOMENDATIONS

Page 70



9.01

10.00
10.01
11.00
11.01
12.00
12.01
13.00
13.01
14.00
14.01
15.00
15.01
16.00
16.01
17.00

17.01

Appendix A

Members are recommended to :-

a) Note the overall report.

b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 315t March 2015
(paragraph 7.06)

c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account
(paragraph 8.03)

d) Approve the carry forward requests as stated in paragraphs 4.01-4.04

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 8.00 of the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 8.00 of the report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None
APPENDICES

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 4 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Efficiencies not fully achieved — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movements on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 71



Appendix A

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 72



Appendix 1

COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

crecon . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FSl.r y Filint
Hlintshire Budget Monitoring (Month 10)
Summary of Movement from Month 9
£m £m

Month 9
Portfolios (0.572)
Central and Corporate Finance (1.406)
Variance as per Cabinet Report (1.978)
Month 10
Portfolios (0.432)
Central and Corporate Finance (1.284)
Variance as per Directorate Returns (1.718)
Change Requiring Explanation 0.262

Social Services

Services For Adults
o Localities (Locality Teams) - Projected spend on purchased Domiciliary Care reduced by £0.011m. (0.027)
Projected costs in residential long term care reduced by £0.009m. Additional reduction in Nursing Long
term care cost projection of £0.020m. This reduction in costs is offset by increased projection of
Residential short term care costs of £0.005m. Plus net impact of increases in other minor variances of
£0.008m.

e Mental Health (Residential and Domiciliary Care) - Movement due to reduction in Residential Long (0.027)
Term care projected costs of £0.029m. Plus net impact of increases in other minor variances of
£0.002m.

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults. 0.007
Subtotal: Services For Adults (0.047)

Development & Resources
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.001
Subtotal: Development & Resources 0.001

Services For Children
e Family Placement - Movement to due to decrease in direct foster care support costs and Family

placement costs. (0.055)
e QOut of County placements - increase of £0.060m due to changes to placement costs and new 0.060
placements. .
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.016)
Subtotal: Services For Children (0.011)
Total: Social Services (0.057)

Community & Enterprise

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.

e Customer & Housing Services (0.002)

e Regeneration 0.015

* Revenues & Benefits 0.016

e Customer Services (0.003)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.026
Total: Community & Enterprise 0.026

Page 73



Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Appendix 1

Page 74

Streetscene
® Business Strategy - Commitment for Weir Consultants Service Review. 0.020
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.010
Subtotal: Streetscene 0.030
Highways Strategy & Traffic Services
e Transportation - Commitment Challenge Budget reallocated back to service. (0.030)
e Aggregate minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.016)
Subtotal: Highways Strategy & Traffic Services (0.046)
School Transport
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.008)
Subtotal: School Transport (0.008)
Total: Streetscene & Transportation (0.024)
Planning & Environment Portfolio
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
e Planning 0.008
e Public Protection (0.017)
e Highways Development Control (0.021)
e Other Services (0.009)
e Greenfield Valley Heritage Park (0.008)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.045)
Total: Planning & Environment (0.045)
Education & Youth
21st Century Schools
This cost represents charges and expenditure already incurred against the John Summers High School
replacement scheme within the 21st Century School programme. Expenditure would have been
® classed as capital however this scheme is no longer proceeding so expenditure is reflected within 0.250
revenue.
Subtotal: 21st Century Schools 0.250
Minor variances of less than £0.025m)
Secondary, 14-19 & Continuing Education (0.012)
Inclusion & Behaviour Support (0.022)
Out of County 0.005
School Planning 0.009
School Provision (0.004)
School Management Information - Minor Variances. 0.001
Youth & Community Service (0.001)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.024)
Total: Education & Youth 0.226



People & Resources

HR & OD
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: HR & OD

Corporate Finance
® Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

Subtotal: Corporate Finance

Total: People & Resources

Appendix 1

(0.007)

(0.007)

0.008

0.009

0.002

Governance

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
o Legal Services. (0.007)
e Democratic Services. (0.023)
o Internal Audit. (0.001)
e Support Services. 0.005
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.026)

Total: Governance (0.026)

Organisational Change

Leisure Services.

® Following February half term, the projected income anticipated to be received at Deeside Leisure 0.068
Centre for the Ice Rink was lower than envisaged.

Subtotal: Leisure Services 0.068

Valuations & Estates

£0.027m is due to an in house service relocated from third party accommadation to council building,
this will result in an efficiency but this will not be realised this financial year. £0.034m relates to a roof
renewal following storm damage in connection with one of the Council's commercial units, the resultant
cost is due to the service meeting the insurance payment as this fell within the Council's excess.

0.061

Subtotal: Valuations & Estates

Property Design & Consultancy
Reflects additional fee income identified.
Subtotal: Property Design & Consultancy

Facilities
Increase in Catering income.
Subtotal: Facilities

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Engineering Services.

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Organisational Change

Page 75

0.061

(0.037)

(0.037)

(0.048)

(0.048)

(0.006)

(0.006)

0.038



Appendix 1

Chief Executive

e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.000
Total: Chief Executive 0.000

Central & Corporate Finance

® Pension Fund Contributions. 0.045
®  Workforce Costs. 0.026
*  Workforce Efficiencies. 0.066
®*  One-off Efficiencies. 0.030
® Non Standard Inflation. (0.158)
e Euticals - Phase 1 decontamination/Revised running costs 0.111
e QOther minor variances. 0.002
Total: Central & Corporate Finance 0.122
Total Changes 0.262

Page 76



[CELINNELS
Ajgesiq) seowneg

"90IAIBS Auigesig - sunpy
‘malnal sapun daay| siy) o} pabieyd Bulaq siasn a91ASS Mau OM) 0) anp sI puadsiano ay]|z5z°0 1€2°0 190C 0€8°L 10} SAIIAIBS |BID0S
(seo1nuag
‘wG/0°03 Aygesiq) saoines
Jo puadsiano pajoaloid [e10) BY) JO WGQQ"0F JO) SIUNODJE SIY | Ayjgesiq pue
‘sjuswiAed 10a.41p Jo 10adsal Ul sjRIapuad Aq papiaoid sjuswabuelie uoljisuel] - s)npy
‘MalIA31 Japun daay uoddns ayj 40 1502 ay} 0} anp Ajulew s puadsiano pajoafosd 8y €60°0 /00 1190 9€6°0 10} S32IAIS |BID0S
*SSOUBLIEA JOUIW O} NP WZ00 03
10 puadsiapun Ue os|e s| 818y '9ied ABp uo WZG0 03 Jo puadsiapun
ue pue Sai)i|1oe) a1eoEAXT UO W L9003 JO puadsiapun ue S)
alay] ‘(ssbieyo Buusied Ajuiew) wggo 03 JO S9INISS B salddng pue
(s1500 sainNN Ajurew) w/ g 03 JO S)S0D Sas|Wald U0 Spuadsiano Aq (juswa|geay
195}j0 aJe spuadsiapun asay) ‘s}sod Aed uo w LQ'0F JO puadsiapun  ayeu|)
paioefoid e pue (w0 03 Jo dwodul Juelb JJo-auo mau pue s801M9G paje|nbay
W6 L°03 JO SuoRNguIuod Juald pasealou) Buieq) we Lz 03 40 awoou) Y S92IN0SAY - SYNPY
"MaIAa) Japun dea))| jeuoiippe ol anp WSE( 03 J0 puadsiapun jau e sey are) [eluapisay|(z1z'0) (012°0) 2SS LELS 40} sadInIRg [BID0S
‘WEED 03 Jo puadsiapun
J8U B 0} Junowe sasueueA JaYlQ Buisinu aayy 1o wsg| 03 Buipnioul
196pnq sAoqe awodUl Ul Sasealdul Jayung pue awoou| pajeas Apadosd
10 |2A8| By} Ul 8sealdul Ue 0) anp WL Zg 03 Jo puadsiapun ue ‘siapinosd
awoy aJeo 0} sjuawied uo w9l 03 Jo puadsispun ue sapn|oul
YoIym ‘ales |enuspisas uo wy9 03 Jo puadsiapun pajosfoid e Aq
1osyo Buiaq si a1eo Aueroiwop uo puadsiano pajoslosd Jueoyiubis ay g
‘efjuawap yum ajdoad jo siaquinu Buiseasoul pue pasu
Jo Alxajdwioo paseatoul ‘ajyoud anessowap Buibueys sy Yuawsalqeal
1sed |nyssasons Buimojo} 221Aas 3y} 0} Buiuinials sjuai|a Aq pasusnjjul (saneso) swes |
‘a1eD AueioiLoq UIGIM WIgYE 03 JO PUSASIBAC JO [aA3] B|qElS Allle) Ayeaot - synpy
‘MBI Japun daay||e suiewal aiay) ‘Janamoy ‘eale Siy) ul Juswaaoldu jjeJanc ue st a1ay] |¥61°0 1910 Al L0 ¥L 10} S3OIAIBG |BID0S
S32JAIBG |B120S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
= wnyuno jebpng
paiinbay uonosy asuepeA Joley Jo asned jse aoueueA pojosfoid pesmney 9oINIeg
aoueMBA

Z Xipusady

AYVYIWANS - 0L HLNOW

S30UBLEA punj 1oUNoy)

BUNGYUON 196pNg

Page 77



‘wQe'03 40
puadsiapun jau 2 0} JUNOWE SAOUBLIEA JOUIW JBYJO SNOUBA "WEY| 03
10 GHNDQ WoJj awoou) papuny Julol AQ 18S 40 Wiy0y'0 JO Puadsiano

(soomiag

Aygesiq) soinieg
Aunqesiq pue synpy
9|qeJauInA - S)npyY

‘mainal Japun daay|| aled [eyuapisal pue sabeyoed aied pajosfosd Juaund Jo s)sod sjos)ay |25z 0 1£2°0 190°2 0€8°1L 10§ S32IIBS [BI20S
(aoinuag asnsiy
SdueIsqns g YyesH
‘SUNO2 J0 uosud woiy adnou |ejuapy) 19bpng
Hoys Je SpueLIap pue siagunu jua)o ui sabueyo 2|SUBI04 - SYNpY
0) anp Ajljie|oa [epuajod - mainal Japun deay ‘G1/710Z 4o sabexoed a1e Juaund sjoa)eY|(zi L 0) {zr1°0) €10 SLeo 104 S83IMAG |eId0g
(eo1uag asns)y
aduelsqns g ylesHy
[ejuapy) 3213
‘W00’ 03 JO puadsiano Jau e 0) JUunowe SadUBLEBA
Jouiwl Jayjo snouep "wge 03 Buyjieiol sjsod sbeyoed mau jeuoiippe enuapisay synpy
"MalAal Japun daayy apis Buoje sabeyoed Aseyoiwog pue jejuapisay ul sabueyd | 621°0 2010 5060 £08°0 10} S9OIAIBS |BID0S
‘91/G10¢ woiy ainssalid ieak [jn} panoidde (semyeso)
Apuaoal ay) jo joedw Jeak ped e syospal siy] (S70Qd) Suawssassy 10)jeuipso-00)
Buipsenbajes saipaqi jo uoneaudaq Joj palinbal adiape [eoipaw Buipsenbajeg - s)npy
‘mainal Japun deay||  pue yels Aousbe 1o) S)S0D pasessdul 0) NP S| 3dUBLEBA aSIaApE 3y (59070 1500 .20 /120 10} S9IIAIBS [BI00S
‘WGGO 03 218 sSpuadsiano JouIW anp SBOUBLIBA
*sjuawaoe|d papuny jutof wouy awodul |euolippe 0} anp Ajuiew st yoiym
we1°03 Jo puadsiapun pajosfoid e sey Buial papoddns asnoy-u)
"BaJE SIY} Ul 91/G10Z wouy Aouaidya 1abpng mau ay)
aAvlyoe 0} diay M gHNDQ WOl paAiadal SWodul Mau 8Yy] ‘W50 03
10 puadsiapun Jau B 0} JUNOLUE S3JUBURA JOUIW JBYI0 W62 03
10 S1S09 Juswaoe|d |enuapisal uo puadsiapun ue pue ‘sjuawadeld (s@a1uag Anjgesiq)
papuny jutof payndsip Ajsnoiaaid Jo yoadsal ul ‘'gHNDg wWou WeeZ 03 sa0I1n8g pajeinbay
JO swoosul [euonippe 1au Aq pasusniul Ajulew si yoium woy9 03 Y SO2IN0SIY - SYNPY
"MaIAal Japun doayy| jo puadsiapun pajaafoid e sey Buiai papoddng Jojoas yuapuadapul|(ze2°0) (oL20) 8v6'vL 99°G1 10} S92IAIRG |BI120S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
gieaty wayno jebpng
pasnnbay uonoy soueLe Jofey Jo asne) jse aouBUBA LTIV ETS
soueLEA paafoid | paesiey

Z Xipusddy

AIVYWANS - 0L HLNOW

S30UEBLHEA puny ||oUNoy)

BULOYUGH 196png

Page 78



900 {LL00)  |155°8S 895°8S S20JAJSS [B190G (€10
(s1eb2166e)
S2DUBLIBA UBIP|IUD
"JU2.LNJ3J 3q 0} PaJ2adxa Jou NG M3IA3] 0} BNUNUOYD "S3OUBUIBA JOUIW SNOUBA €010 600 965°1L 116°L 10} S82IMBS JBYIO
*5)S02 Hoddng 9 uofjuaasid
‘mainal Japun daay| pajefas uawebpn{ yemyinog o} anp weso 03 0 puadsiano pajosiold (65070 6500 2910 €01°0 - S9OIAIBS S,UBIPIIYD
sjuawiaoeld
-sabeyoed aJed xa|dwod jo Aunod jJo Inp
‘mM3inal Japun deay|| Jaquinu paseasoul ue Aq pasuanjjul Ajulew s) puadsiaao pajaafoid ay] |6¥2°0 0LE0 8c/'t gev'e - S90IAIBS S,UBIPIIYD
"WYG0'03 JO puadsIano Jau B 0] JUNOWE SBOUBLIBA JOUIW JSYJO SNOLIBA
(sain) seomusg Ayjiqesiq pajesBaju suaipiiyd oy wzpl 03 4o Hoddng [euoissajoid
‘malnal Jopun deay| sjuawAed joauip pasealoul 0} Ajulew anp s) puadsiano pajoalosd sy l6yL 0 8510 £8€°S GZZ'S - S3JIAIRG S,UdIPIYD
*S19JBD 3Y)
"sa1ouaIolya ajqissod| 104 souemojle Buiobuo ue Joeie Ajgeueaul yoiym sieplo diysuelpiens
pue Bujuue|d ainin WIoJUI [IM PUB PSISPISUOD |etoads pue aduapISay 40§ SIBPIO UNOD JO Jaquinu Buiseasou
Buiaq SI YoIyM JO SLIOOINO 3y} U3EPIPUN |ay) 0} aNp OS[e S SIY) JO HBd "321AS 3Y) UIYNM Sjuawadeld a1ed 13)soj wawade|d Apwed
uaaq Sy Wea| Juswade|d Ajjwe- ay) JO Mainal Y JO JaquINU 3y} Ul 3SB3JOUI UB JO }nsai B S) puadsiano ws0z 03 34110920 5020 FAN A 1222 - $321A3S S,UaIpjIYD
(sebaibbe)
S3OUBLIBA S32UNOSaY
"JUaLINJ3J 3q 0} Pajoadxa Jou INQ M3IASI 0) dNURLOD "'S9OUBLIBA JOUIW SNOLBA|ZZ0°0 0L00 lov'e lsv'e 9 wawdojaag JBYI0
awoou|
- $92IA3G ssauisng
yoam Jad 663 0} 3aam Jad 063 woyy ded sbieyd wnwixew - $90JN0SaY
‘M3IA2) pUB JOJUOW 0} 3NUNUOD|ayl JO [9A3] 8yl Ul JuBWWIBA0S UsiaA AQ aseasoul ue jo joedwyi(82Z°0) (512°0) (882°1) (e45°1) %9 Juawdojanaq
(s1e62.1668)
SaJUBLIBA S)NPY
"Jua1iNoaJ aq 0} Pajoadxa JoU NG MBIABL 0} BNUNUOYD *‘S3OUBLIBA JOUIW SnoueA |(Zoy 0) (zZiv0) 6€5°C 1S6'C 10} SNBSS JBUID
(w3) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
pheon wnpno | 1eBpng
pasinbay uonosy asueue Jolew jo asne) 1sen asueUBA CLITNETS
soueeA pejosfoid | pesiney

ZXipuaddy

AYVYINNNS - 0} HLNOW

SODUBLEA pUN [OUN0D

BULIOHUGH J96PNg

Page 79



aspdiajug

(zvg'0) [(9180) [silEi L6S°EL B Munwwog [ejoL
‘W90 03 JO SPOUBLIBA JOUIW JBYJ0 O} anp Aouaioiyg
‘WEE0'0F JO SI08UU0D aiySiul4 Jo 10adsal ul ADUSIOlyg "BWOodU|

"MBIA3) puUB Jo)juoW 0} anunuo) |ableysal uone|sues] Ys|ean paocnpal o) anp amnssaid wgLo03/(2200) {080°0) 6850 G990 S3IAIBG JBWO)SND
*S3OUBLIEA JOUIW O} anp ADU3IDIYL W00 03 "1eah ayl ul
Joje| abueyo 0} Joalgns aq UBD pue 3|1JejoA SI eale Siy} uo puadsiapun
ay] -'aWwaydg uoionpay XeJ jounod) a8yl Joy uoisiaoid pajabpng
8y} UO WGZ'03 4o puadsiapun pajosfold "WESS 0F JO pund UoKoa(j0D

"M3IABJ PUE JOJjUOW 0} anuijuod|xe] J1ounog a8yl uo snidins pajedionue ue o} anp puadsiapun|(cEg0) (218°0) 2810l 66601 sjiyauag g sanuanay
‘WO’ 03 JO SBIDUBIDIYD JoulW JBYQO PO Ul SHIOoM
JB)EA\ USI9M AQ Paleqiadexa ‘awooul JO SSO| PUB SISOD [BAOWS)

"MBIABJ PUB JOHUOW 0} SNUIIUOT) [a)sem pasealoul 0} anp Siax)ew ul WIE0'03 Jo jlemoys payewns3l|gooo €200 8050 S8P°0 uoiesauabay
‘WZ 1003 Jo paynuap!
S3OUBLIBA JOUIW JAYIO "WZZ0°03 40 Juswdinba aiesaja | pjuljaie)

‘MBIABI PUB JOJUOW O} aNUiuoD 10 @dUBUS)UIBW pUEB aseyoind au) SPJEMO) S)S0D pasealoul|£80 0 $80°0 1050 eZr 0 a|doag Buipoddng
*S3OUBLIEA
JoulW JBY}0 0} aNp Wz 03 JO puadsiaAo uy ‘W0 03 JO Juawainooid
ddVHS jo adsas ul amnjpuadxa MBN "WGSZO'03 JO Ppaynuapl
SSausSss|dWoH 0} uoddns jeuonippy BWOSUl pund UONUBABId
ssajawoH pue suonoafoid uonepowiwlodde gg JO  UOHEN|EAD
-a1 e Buipnjoul UOHEPOWWOIY SSSIBWOH U0 WLz 03 jO puadsiapun

palewnsy ‘vyH ay) woy pund [ouno) ay) o) abieysas poddns jo S90INBS

"M3IABI PUB JOJUOW O} SNURUOT)|[9A8) Jamo] B 0} anp 1220 0} pajoafold si WgZo 03 4O 1502 jeuonippe uy|(c20'0) (920°0) €660 6L0°L Buisno g Jawoisny

wm_um._ma—._m

' Aunwwo)

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
g wngno | jeBpng
pasinbay uonoy asueue Jofep jJo asne) isen aoueUBA LTINS
oUBLBA pejosfoid | pesmay

Z Xpuaddy

AYVINNNS - 0L HLINOW

$B3UBHEA punj IDUNCY
BULOHUGH 19bpng

Page 80



uopepodsues |

851°0 vEL'O 619'62 S8v°62 'g 2UDISIBANG [EJOL

- ajebiyw SaoUBUEA

0} JdWape 0) SJUSWIILULLOD || MBIABI 0) SNURUOD ‘S90UBLEA JOUIN(ZE0°0 120°0 09l ¥L 6ELVL J9u30 Jo a)ebaibby

‘pua Jeak |eoueuly Aq paebyiw Any aq Ainyadoy

llim 3oueLIEA 0S Uodalp aansod e ul Buinow osje 'saInso|0 peol ¥ (sauedwod Aynn Aq sedal Jo spiepuels

S| 8WOOU| 'g PO 1B 2oue|eq 01j0ju0d Y0Z3 40 asn|Buinoidwi uo paseq) s,Nd4 10} dwodul Jo SjaA3| pajedionue uey) Jamo1|100°0 0000 1700 100 syompans
‘w003
JO P3YIIUSPI SOUBLIBA JOUIW JBUIQ "PASIAASI YOEF JO JUSWAIIA
126pNnqg e Q| pouad 1Y "S|9As| 1oenuod Buisealdap uo paseq paonpal

‘91/51.0¢ 404 sjesodoud Buluueld ssauisng jo ued juswywwos ainypuadx] ‘siojelsadQ sng o) sjuawhed Apisgng sng|(ey00) |(#2000)  |2vE'L oL uoneyodsuel j
"aininy ay) ojui }so2 Bujobuo "MAINDY 99IAIDS SIUBYNSUODYD) JIBAA JO) )0ZF JO USWHWWOD)

alebiniw o} 91/5102 LI paubiieas aq o) s1abpng jodag| 1odaq 1wey |y Je uoisircid AUNdag / uuely Jo 1500 Aunoag (MO IYBIUN[LED 0 1600 616°L 898°L ABajeng @ ssauisng
‘SLiyLOC Ul sisod [9ny
‘uonedoje |SN ajelodio) 1210} pajoaloid Joy {(Ajsiesodiod play Apuaund 3z /|13 jo 196png |ejo})

Aq pajebiw usaq sey )0g 13 Jo puadsiang A0E L3 JO Uonejul piepue)s UoN J0j UOJEDO|(B By} S9pNjoul WNNQ(000°0 ¢00'o cLSY 0.5y SIJINISS 1931
"WZ00 03 JO Payiuapl SeoUBLBA Joulw JaylQ ‘Buiseasoul suuo)
"Joaya Jeak ||ny 10} 12d 1502 3y} 0} anp }g¢ 3 Jo |esodsip 3)SEAL POOS JO 1S0D pasealou|
196png 91/G10zZ 40} pamwigns piq ainssald 1abpng 983 Jo puadsiano pajoafoid e uy Bunjnsal

‘Pajly aq |Im s1sod ay) asimIBylo ‘satouedea|  sI uoisiaoid 90iAas AUBSSS03U SY) UIBJUIBUI O} SIOUBJEA JO Jaquinu uoNa3||0D ANSBA

anowal [im g1/510¢ siesodoud Buluueld ssauisng| ybiy 0) anp (uuosiad Aouaby Jo asN PUB SLWIPSBAO JO SIS0 [BuolIPPY|ZEL 0 ¥EL°0 685’/ \Sh'L B |esodsi(} )SEM

:ozﬂtgmcmh.ﬁ

9 auads}eans

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
tauow wnung j8bpng
paiinbay uonasy aoueueA Jofely Jo asne) jse’) aoueleA TV E TS
souBLEA papsfoid | pesiay

¢ XIpusddy

AYVNWNS - 0L HLNOW

S30UBHEA puny |IOUN0CY

Bupojuop 186png

Page 81



jusdwiuosaug

(sor'0) [(orz0) |96S'S 908'S 7 Bujuueld jejo)
‘losuo)

yuswdoianag sAemybiy ul suawywiwod Asueynsuo?) Buirowsal sSaouBLBA

‘Jualinodal aq 0} pajaadxa JouU NG M3IAS] 0} BNURUOD U] |nySS800NS USaq Sey abuajieyd JUBSWIWILWIOD Jayuny) ‘0| pouad IV|0L0°0 (600°0) 9820 5620 1930 jo ajebalbby

‘uinyno pajoadxa ayy ul Ned abeyay

"M3lA31 0} 3NuPUOD | UONONPaI B U) paynsas sey Buuoyuow ybnoiyy abusjiey) Juawywwod|(410°0)  |(020°0)  |692°0 6820 8 A3)leA playusaln
‘AIBUIp1022E pauajsuel} Usag aABY pue SHIoOA eldeD

"Jua11n231 3q 0) Pa}oadxa Jou JNg M3JABI 0} BNUNKUOD Se paynuapl uaaq aABY MOYd Ulyim ainypuadxa Jo sway oytoads|(200°0) (900°0) v.E°0 08€°0 Aep jo siybry onand

(uonelauan

Ayouyos|3

pue sa)g |lijpuen

*$)509 [ejuay yuawdinb3 pue asueusjulely ¥ siieday buipnpas paso|o Buipnjour)

‘sauIbu3 sec) 10} S|aAST UOIBISUIL) SLLIODU| JOPUO Ul JNyssa20Ns uaaq sey abua|jeyd JUSWWWOD J3aYUNy ‘gL pousd Iv|(610'0) (s20°0) /€00 2900 saoineg Abiaulg

‘Buuoyuow ‘a)ep 0} sbuiaes yejs Jo aAisnjou) aouBULIONSd B

196pnq Aed Alyluow jo ped se pamainal a9 [IIM uoieyuawaidwi snyeys 9|bulg Bumojjo; patesojie 126png Aoueden i (610°0) (050°0) €620 ev80 yoddng juswabeuepy

‘90IAIaS Y}

ssosoe abuajjeyo juswwwos uejuew 0y aNURUOY) uonejuswa|dw sniejs a|buis bumoio) payeso|le s@bpng|000°0 (Z10°0) 6v'2 60S¢C uonosjold 2liand
‘paiojuoLl ‘01 pouad Je paAiadal saay u|

Aj9s0|2 aq | sjaAs) swoou| 894 Buluue|d| uononpal JYBIIS B YIm ‘BjqeleA ulewsas awosul a3 Bujuueld jo sieaat{(160°0) (£80°0) el gszr'L Buuuelq

juawuoliAug

w» Buluue|d

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
hean wnuno | 3eBpng
pasnbay uonoy soueLeA Jofew Jo asned jse aoueHBA L ITNET
soueuBA pajosfoid | pesiey

¢ Xipuaday

AYVYNNNS - 0L HLINOW

SSOUENEA puny JIounoy)
Bunoyuop 196png

Page 82



YinoA

9%0°0 ZLT0 1L18°96 6£5°96 ' uopesnpg [e)o
uoljeulo| 9
"M3IABI 0] Bnunuo) “80uBLBA JOUIN|(610°0) (810°0) c€alLo €810 awabeuep jooyag
*saoueLeA Jouiw Jayyo snid ‘suonduosqns jo ayeldn jo Buuayybi ) asuewlopad
"MajAB) O} anuUOD "J§e1S |00YIS YUm PajBIDoSSE S)S00 |[e63) jeuwsaixa ul uononpay |(£90°0) (£90°0) 162°0 v1E°0 2 Bujuoissiwwo)
"M3IAB) 0} SNURLOD "aouenep Jouln|(z00'0)  [(€00'0)  [8L¥L LZv'L S82IBS YINOA
*BNUBA3L UIYIM pajoajjal
s| ainypuadxa os Buipaaosoid Jabuo| ou si sWaYDS sIY} Janamoy |ejded
SE passe|2 uaaq aAey pinom ainypuadx3 -awwesboid jooyos Aumus)
1S1Z 8} UIynm awayos juawaoe|dal jooyos YbiH siswwng uyor auyy
jsuiebe paunoul Apealje ainypuadxa pue sabieys sjuasaidal 1s0d siyL 0000 0S20 L1E0 1900 sjooyog Ainuad i1sL.g
(uoisinoig g Buuue|d
"M8IABJ 0} 8nuuo) ‘S0ueleA JoUIN| L1000 9000 e¢elo 9120 |00yog) SS90y
‘Aenuer Buunp pasijeal alem %/ |3 jo sbunes Buiyels )8e3
10 }S02 Jayuny B pajeald sjuaid g jo yoddns | 0} | Ul asessoul ue sy}
0) uolippe u| “JaquaacN Buunp paaiasal asam Juawaoeld Buibiaws
ue pue syuswaoce|d mau g 18bpnq siy) pajoaye Ajasiaape 1aqojoQ
"anuuod |im Buuoyuow pajielaq “Jeak| ul sjuawsaoeld Aunod jo IO mau g ‘suoioaloid o} abueyos yuesyubis
ay} inoybnoiyy abueys Aew sjuawaose|d uoneonpy € @)ew ued juswaoe|d jeuonippe auo pue abpnqg anejoa e sy s {0LL0 £60°0 90¢£'cL cLZEL S32IAIBS UOISN|DU|
uoneanp3 Buinuguo)
"M3IA8I 0} anujuo) ‘doueleA HoUIN|610°0 2000 9%.'9¢ 6€L°9¢ % 6L- v1 ‘Alepuodag
‘Burobuo s1 poddns Alosiape Juawagiua Apes
JO sws|uBYoaW [UBAIIBP 8Y) JO MBIASJ JBUUNS "awWl} JaYdea) %01 ay} uojeoNp3 s1eaA
‘M3IABI 0] SNUNUOD| JaA02 0} Juawaul Ae3 o) Juelb aseyd UoNEPUNO JO UOHEJ0(IEaY 0000 0000 988°EY 0989'cY Aje3 g Aewud
Yino,A g uopeanpy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
BUON wnpno jebpng
paanbay uonoy asuepe Jofey Jo asnen isen oouBLBA 2JINIDS
aouepeA peyefoid pesiaay

Z XIpusady

AYYWANS - 0L HLNOW

S90UBLEA punyj [10UN0D)

BUDGHUOW 156pNng

Page 83



08L°0 $SL°0 909°8 451 4] 22UBLIBAOY |B)0 )

‘w90 0F JO Spuadsiano Joultu
0} anp sl aouejeq ayy '8z0°03F Jo uud jeubip uo swoodul snidins pue
wge 03 40 sbuiaes Aoueoen Aq Jasyo Buiaq ase sjsoo asayi ‘w20z 03
"Aluo|jo s)sod Aouaby Jo 1S00 ay) pue wgeQ 03 10} 196png asemyos ay)

Jeak-ul SI mMalAal 3deIQ 3y} 0) anp ainssaid ay] |uo aunssaid e ‘WO 03 JO MBIASI 3SUB|T SjoRIO 0) @np S| puadsIsAn|990°0 9900 Y4 161V 121
yswabeuepy

"JuauINdaJ 8q 0} PajYadxa Jou JNg M3IAS) 0} ANUIUOD "SaoueUBA JOUIN| 1200 12070 6810 8910 SpIoday
‘JuaLIndal aq 0} pajoadxa Jou INQ M3IAB) 0} BNURUOD ‘saoueueA Jouln|(520°0) (0200) 9690 91L0 sao1neS poddng
‘JuaLINdal 8q 0} pajoadxa Jou g M3IASI 0} SNUKUOD ‘saoueLIBA JOUIN| 1000 1000 6120 8120 JUSIaIN30Id
‘JusuINdal 8q 0) pajaadxa J0U JNg MBIA] 0} BNURUOD) "saoueueA JOullN|(1L10"0) (21L0°0) 20¥°0 LAN A 1pny |ewsalu|

*SOUBLIEA JOUIW O} NP aJe WQ 003 Jo spuadsiapun
‘19151631 [BIO)OS}e BU) JO} SlIodUl WGNO 03 JO JUBWAA3|YOe JBAO pue
1©bpng Buluiesy sgaquisw ay} U0 WOZO'03 JO puadsiapun ue ‘s)SOI

‘JuaLINdaJ aq 0} pajaadxa JouU NG MIIA3) 0} anupuo ) |BuisseAued uo wyLO°0F JO puadsiapun ue o) anp S| aosueuea ay] |(z£o'0) (ss0°0) +26°L 6.6°L S32IAJ8G dljeloowag
"wzo'03
“JeaA |eloueul Siy) 103 1509 Bulinoal(jo s)s02 Acuaby Wz 03 JO SSOUBLEBA JOUIW JBYJO 0} aNp puadsianQ
-uou yo-auo e s| sabieys pue| punose uonebnq|'sebieys pue| jeso) punose uonebiy] o) anp wiglL 03 Jo ainssaid y|09L0 €510 €160 0920 saoinag |eba
JIUBUIBAOL)
S92UN0SY
(800°0) |(90070) |s68¥ L06'V % aidoad ;oL
"MBIABI 0} BNUIlUOD "saoueueA Jouin|(0e0'0)  |(1200)  |Zvve £9¥'C soueul4 sjesodio)
"M3IAR) 0) BNUNUOD "SBOUBLIBA JOUIN|220°0 SL00 £5p'2 8EP2 aoeyH
sadinosay g ajdoad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
i wnyng | 3eBpng
pasinbay uonoy aoueuep Jofey jo asne) jseq aouepieA -0 PV [T
aoueLEA pajoeford | pesiaey

AUVANNS - 0L HLNOW

Saouenea punj jounoy

¢ XIpuaddy BULOHUGH 186pNg

Page 84



abueyn

601°0 Lo viL°0L 120°01 leuopesjuebiQ jejo)
'sjooyas Bulujewal oy 1no Jnojjos
3U) SNURUOD 0} g1 °G| 0} JBAO|j01 0} pajsanbal wWey0 0
J0 adue|eq Jualnd ‘wggo'o JO 11 40) Buipuny
paaiby - sjeaw |ooyos Joj JuswAed auluo g 610 "39UBLIEA ||EJBAO 3U) 0} Bunnguuod awoaul Guusied ul aseasou)|(1.z20'0) (6900) (2191 088’1 $321ABG Sap)|ioeq
"M3IABI 0] 3nUUOD ‘SOUBLEA JOUIN[LLO0 G000 (z80'0) {£80°0) saoag Buusauibug
‘aWooUl JO SSOf }9SH0
0} paynuapl uaag sey (NdD) aoueuajulepy Auadold ajeiodio) woly
-ainssaid Buunoal uou e s) sIy] "9|qIssod;  aWODUI 93) [BUCHIPPY * AJBPUOISS SISWWNS UYOS 0} Payul| SWodu| Aoueynsuon
a1aym Jeah-u| S}S0D 2oNpal 0} UBYE) Uaaq SBY UoNDY 0 ssoj pajedionue 0} saje|ai WO 03 J0 puadsiano pajoafoid ay]l]2z1L0 0600 ov6'e 0582 9 ubisaqg Auadoid
"S3DUELIEA J0UIW
0} anp Sl W} Z0 03 JO puadsIapun Uy "SS39X3 SjIJUN0Y 3y} UIYIM
1184 siy) se yuswded asueinsul ay) Buisaw aaA1as ayj o} anp s }S0
JUB)NSAJ 3Y} 'SHUN {BI2IBWILIOD S,[IDUNOYD S} JO SUO U)IM UONOSUUOD
ur abewep wio)s Bumoi|0) [BMBUSI JOOI B 0) Sa)ejal WHE 03 JO
puadsiano uy "I1eak |ejoueuy SIY) Pasijeal aq Jou |Im Siy) Ing Aousioys
ue uj ynsai jiim siyy ‘Buip(ing j1ounod o} uolepowwosde Aued pay)
‘ainssaxd Buuinoal B jou s| siY| | Wolj pajesojal adIAIas asnoy Ul Ue 0) 3np St Ww/zZ0 03 Jo puadsiano uy|{1z00) ovo0 (¥v6°0) (+86°0) S3)e}sg g uonenien
‘SJuBlEA ON|000'0 0000 0900 0900 sjassy Ayunwwo)
*S3OUBLIEA JOUIW
0} seje|al WEED 03 Jo aduejeq puadsiano ay] (wggQ 03) pabesiaus
UBLj) JaMO| SEM HUIY 99| By} JO} 2IJUDD) 2INSIDT SPIS3( JB PaAladal
*3WODUI UO |jejuoys 0) se suoseal ajeblisanul|  aq o} pajedionue swoou; pajoalold ay) ‘wia) jley Azenigad Bumojjo4 [€£00 10L°0 cozv 0Ly S3DIAI9G 3INSIA
“MalAsl 0} shuuo) "80uBLBA JOUIN|(S00°0) (500°0) 6v2°0 ¥62'0 $aAIyoIY Auno)
"M3IABI Q) BnuuoD "80ueleA JOUlN|(+00°0) (+00°0) 8600 2900 20IAI3G swnasniy
Sjuang
*® 2NN ‘sUy
"M3IABI 0} BNURUOD “aoueueA Jouly|(110°0)  {(LL0'0)  [€28°L ¥88°L '3 saueiq] 2liqnd
abueyy jeuopesjuebip
(w3) (w3) (w3) (wr3)
N wnino | 1eBpng
pannbay uopdy asuepep Jofep Jo asne) jse aoueueA aolAIeg
souepeA pejosfoid | pesiaey

Z Xipusddy

AYVYINANS - 0L HLNOW

Sa0UEUEA punj |19Unoy)

Bunowuop 186png

Page 85



‘s93) JIpne

|eou0)siy O} Uohe|al Ul PaAladal usaq sey W 0’03 JO ajeqal JJo suo Y
"WwQGO 03 JO SUORNGLILOD puny UOISUSY

"WG/E 03 JO SWodUl |[ejpuim 8)eiodio) "WQSL 03 JO SUOHONPSP MS
‘paJinbal jou wg/zZ 03 10 uoneyul piepuels uoN “Buuojuow jabpnq
jo Hed se soljofod ulyiM payUap! WEEY 03 JO SalouaIolye Jo suQ
'81/2102 Iun uibaq jou (1M S|o00YS

AInjuao 1s|Z U0 dyIN ‘Jeuonesado awoosaq sjasse ay) Jaye Jeak ay)
suibaq pue j1asse ay) Jo 3yl 3y} Jano peaids si Buimoniog jenusprid
Aq papuny s}asse uo JyN "22ouepinb y4diD Yim asuepiodoe

Ul pamaiaal uaaq sey Aoljod Bununooose Jy “siuawalinbal
BuimoLIoq pue saAIasal aininy Jo [2A9)] au) pue awwelboid
juswsaAul aimny jo joedw ‘yuswuoodde ysalsiu Buipsebal
aonoeid Bupunoooe ‘wuoyas Apisqns Yy Buipsebal sajuiepasun

SE yans s10)oe) Auew Aq pajoajje aq ued Siy) ‘JBASMOH WS 03 aoueuUlq
M3IADY Japun daay 10 puadsiapun pua JeaA pajoaloid Jusw)saaul pue sueoT |enuad (90’ L) (ygez’L) 0l2€e vSSve ajelodio) B [eAUID
ajueuld
ajesodiod g jenua)
(960°0) |(960°0) |i51€ £52°¢ $9AN29X3 J9IYY |e10L
*S9JUBMEA JOUlW 0} 3Np SI W {003 JO 8duejeq ay |
‘SjusWIWWIoD ainyipuadxa Jo [BAOWS) BY) O} anp SI WZy0 03 'papuny
Juelb aq mou [|im Yoiym S)S09 JO UO[edojeas e 0} anp SI puadsiapun
"M3iARJ 0} BNURUOD(SIY} JO WELD'0F "WSSO 0F JO puadsuapun ue Bumoys si nun Aollod 3yl ((9600)  [(9600)  [/GL'E €52 SaAN28X3 JaIYYD
S9ANNIIXT JBIYD
(w3) (w3) (wz) (w3)
e wnpno | jeBpng
pasinbay uonody asueueA Joley Jo asne) jsen douRlEA pejosfos pesine aoInIeg
aosueleA d "oy

¢ XIpusday

AYVANNNS - 01 HLNOW

S30UBNEBA punj 1oUno)
BupoHUOW 18bpng

Page 86



(826°1) [(912L)  loovese 9.1°G52 Iviol
3ueUl4 elodio)
(oov'L) |(v8Z'L) |osz'ee PSS B |enuag 2o}
‘Wwe0'03 JO Spuadsiano Joulw o} anp s) asueleq
8y "sus YosoApues - py] S[edin3 JaiuIo) 0} UoNe|dl Ul WOOL 03
O S1S00 uojjeulWEIUI023P | aseyd Jau pue w103 Jo Sisod Buuury
pajabpngun ‘pajiwi awi) / 4o SUQ "W/ 0F JO SISO JUSWISBAU|
uo aoueleq pajedidiue ue Aq 1asyo Ajped S| SaI0UBISIYS SANBASIUILPY
aU} JO JUBWIAASIYD. JBPUN S| "MBIASI 32I0)HOM JayUny pue
suonesiidde Aouepunpay AeyunjoA ybnoiy) paasiyoe aq o} pajedionue
‘Buoyuow AjyjuoLu ale sa1ouaINYa 21NNy YBnoy) S3|01 AAIBIISIUILLPY JO MBIASI 3y}
Bulob-uQ awweiboid Aouepunpay ABUNIOA| JOJ WOGE 0F JO JUSWAASIYDRISPUN UB Yum Jayiabo) gLy ul wis0 03 (panunuoo) aoueu
auy Jo aseyd sayuny e uni 0} ssa1601d ul Mou SISUOAA|  JO JUSLWUSABIYIBIBAO UE 103ja) MOU PBASILUDE S3IDUSIONYS S2IOPHUOAN ajesodio) g [eHUaD
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
on wnpno jabpng
paJinbay uonsy asueLiep Jofeyy Jo asne) jsen asuepeA ELITVETS
SOUBLIEA pajpafoid | peswmey

Z Xipuaddy

AHVNAINS - 0L HLNOW

Sa0UeleA puny |1oUnoy)
Buuo)uo 1obpng

Page 87



Page 88



€ Xipuaddy

%UNJL 8y} Jo aINjNy BY) ;84 JUSWSIUNOUUE [RLBISIUIN

UONEIJ0SSY PEOY YUNJ] SBIBAA YUON - 8U3S}9als

L lzovs | leol]
‘aAJaSa) 3Y) Wouy
papunj uaaq sey (Aeyy g Jdy) uoneyuawsidwi sniels
8ibuis o) enp Aejep ay) “Ainr iun pajeiep aq jou . . N
pinoa sisod ey juesw sy A [Hun pajuswadun €20°0 sjuawabuelse Jan0d pue sejol 0) sabuey) - ainsia | abuey) feuonesiuebip
3q 0} 9|qQE JOU SBM MBIATY 92IAIRS YY) IsNedaq
aigeAsiye aq o} Ajaxijun si Asuaoe syl Jo YiZL/L
"0} Yo 18 woy0 03 o1
{ Ue Wolj oljojuiod aY) SSOIOE SIDUBLIEA
“M_._,___ﬂmﬁ%ﬂ:w.hm.w:wu%MM;%JM_H%_“MMMWMHMMM_“ 'sa1b1auAs Uo suonepUAIWIDaS BHELW ||IM SBale
Buionpas Ul pajsISse aney asay) ‘Jesk ay) «:mcmzo ) ov00 821AJ9s 0M) ay) Jo ansoubelp Buiobuo ay) - saoinieg uofjepodsuel] g auadsieans
pajejay sAemybi - uonjepodsues] @ auadsisans
saseyd A SNOUBA BU) WOJJ SISABS| JO Jaquinu 3y}
0} anp ‘JanamoH °GL0Z Asenuer | Aq MaInsy adineg
ay) jo uonsidwod o} 108lgns Ajeniul asem sbuineg
"91/51.02 wolj g aseyd Jo Aanep oy
wsiueyssw pasodoid ay) yym Jayjebo) ‘sequaldeg 0800 (SL-v10Z) mairal uonELOdSUB)| § BUBOSIBENS
i JauIgeD 0} pajussald Sem malAsy 193] ay} 198|4 WoJj S3I0USIJIY3 JO adUEejeg 183|4 - BUIS}EaNS
10 Z pue | aseyd Jo uofiejuawaidun ay} uo Jodas v
‘Buizisyybiy . sasnoy Buia) papoddns ¢ Buizis)ybiy
ay) jo ped se pamairal Buiaq smainay SYO3 €200 - S82IMBS |BjuapIsay Ajunwiwo) paoueyus - g Seoles [Bros
s i 3 s
pansIyoEUN |1e 19BPNG 91/510Z 3Yi J0 Hed sy ol / S9101 LIUPY 1€ 10 maineY
(w3) paneiyoe
paaaiyoe Hujeq jou A2uajolyys 10) uoseay 1ou Aousromya uoyduasaq Aouaioya oljoyuod
14vd
NI T9VAIIHOV AON3IDI443
l J oso'o ] ] ejo1]
Josfoid ‘qnH Peoy yuniy
ay) pajlels sey sjuewabuewe uawabeuep peoy 0500 SIIEM TN 2U) YNM JUSWISA[OAUI WO} Jeuaq [eloueuly uoneuodsues) g auadsjeals

paaaiyoe Bujeq jou Aouaalye Jo} uoseay

(w3) panajyoe
jou Aouadiyg

uopduosaq Asueioiyy

oljojuod

JTaVAIIHOV LON ADN3ID1443

sapusplg

BuiiGHuon 196png

Page 89



Page 90



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2014

Less - Base Level (inclusive of reduction of
£0.065m agreed as part of the 2014/15
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less — estimate required from the amount
approved as part of Investment strategy as
per budget 2014/15 report

Add — Contribution from investment costs for
termination benefits accounted for in
2013/14

Less - Amount approved under delegated
powers reported in July 2014 monitoring
report

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at Month 10

Total projected Contingency Reserve as
at 315t March 2015

Page 91

£m £m

11.161

(5.769)

5.392

(2.500)

0.745

(0.696)

2.941

1.716

4.657



Page 92



(rog-o) (vseo0) eVL0 L6v'0 :lejo)

(a1ebaibbe)

"M3IAB) Japun deay] 'S3OUBLIBA Joulw SNOUBA|(Z10°0) (850°0) 1612 [ A A S9oUBUEBA JBYIO
“Jeak ay) Jo Jopulewal ay) Joj}
Jsod ay} puny o} pasn aq ||im 3e6png sy}
0] paynJoal aie sjsod aouQ paji Bulaq

‘malnal Japun daay] 194 10U s)sod 0} anp sBuiaes Aoueoep |(58z°0) (sez0) 000°0 Ge20 sbuineg Aoueoep
"19bpnq
uey} aiow Xge3 buleg uinyno siesA
1se| je Jseoalo} 938 syl/sbulpiing vyH
[esauab uo s)s09 asueUBUIRK P Slleday
‘MBIABS DIAIBS BY} 0] anp XGGF AqQ asu

"MaIAB) Japun daa)) 0} pajoadxa aJe S1S00 82IAISS UBpIeD|280°0 8/0°0 806°0 0£8°0 $80IAJ8S plojpue]
Y963 JO awooul pasnpal e uj Buynsal
aJ10jalay) ‘sjueus) Aq pasusuadxa sanss|
JUNO22E 0] Ul 9)E)} 0} PapUAWE JOBJUOD

‘MalAal Japun da)|| pue pamalnal ussq Sey adIARS UapIeD)|S0L 0 S0L0 (609°0) (v12°0) aLWooU| |BJaudg)
‘II'9 SYHH
paonpal ue ui bunnsas aJojaley) “Jales
syiwg | Bumes 196png 1e pauodal ueyy
Jamo| s1 Juswad [endes ay} Jey} saunuapl

"Ma|AB) Japun daa)) uolssiwqns Apisgns jo uonenoed|(681°0) (681°0) GLZ'9 0’9 Apisang
‘sajel ploa ybiy oy anp

"M3IAB] Japun dea)|| pajedidnue ueyj Jamol si awooaul abeies|(550°0) (§50°0) (89.°22) (€L222) sjuay

(w3) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
oty winyno 1oBpng
paiinbay uonoy aJuBlIBA JO asne) muﬂm%.uw> aoueLieA R ) 9IAIBG

§ Xipuaddy

0l pouad - woday asueueA Jolely VMH

Page 93



Page 94



Agenda Iltem 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND RESOURCES)

SUBJECT: BUDGET VIREMENT PROCESS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The purpose of the report is to provide an overview of the rules and
procedures in place governing the virement of budgets and to provide
assurance that there are adequate budget management
arrangements in place.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants (CIPFA)
defines a virement as “the transfer of an underspending on one
budget head to finance additional spending on another budget head,
in accordance with an Authority’s Financial Regulations”.

2.02 The principles in relation to virements are set out in the Council’s
Finance Procedure Rules which specify when a virement should be
undertaken and the relevant limits associated with them.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Virement between budgets is an integral and important feature of
budgetary control for an organisation to ensure sound financial
management.

3.02 In general terms there are two main types of virements:-

1. Accounting Adjustments — this is where it is necessary to
transfer a budget from one place to another to account properly
for the relevant expenditure or income but where the approved
purpose of that expenditure/income does not change from that
approved by County Council. An example of this is the
allocation of energy inflation which is held centrally and
allocated to portfolio areas based on evidenced need.

2. Formal Virements — this is where there is an intended action to
transfer budget from one place to another that does change the
purpose of the expenditure/income approved by County

Page 95



3.03

3.04

3.05

Council. An example of this was the transfer of an amount of
£250k from Adult’s Services to Children’s Services to deal with
a pressure within the Children’s Services area and this was
approved through a formal recommendation in the month 3
2013/14 revenue monitoring report.

The vast majority of budget changes are in relation to accounting
adjustments to deal with the effects of significant change e.g.
treatment of efficiencies. Appendix 1 summarises all of the budget
changes made in 2014/15 as reported in the budget monitoring report
and can be classified in the following categories:-

i) Treatment of Portfolio changes for new Operating Model

ii) Treatment of Workforce efficiencies

iii) Treatment of Admin review efficiencies

iv) Treatment of Single Status Rebasing

v) Treatment of Non Standard Inflation

vi) Treatment of identification of one-off efficiencies

vii) Treatment of centralising budget areas e.g.Fleet Management
viii) Flintshire Connects contributions

ix) Treatment of Back to Basic efficiencies

Financial Procedure Rules (FPR’s) are currently being revised and are
due to be approved by Audit Committee on 3 June 2015 with a view
to recommending to County Council. It is not envisaged that the key
principles will change although the intention is to make clear the
differences between a virement (changed purpose) and an accounting
adjustment (same purpose).

Key Principles underpinning the control of budget virements are as
follows:

e Where Budget Virements relate to a change of use or policy they
should be authorised and there should be formal evidence of this.

¢ Virements simply to minimise variances are specifically precluded.

e Where an approved budget is a lump sum provision or contingency
intended for allocation during the year, its allocation will not be
treated as a virement provided the amount is used in accordance
with the purposes for which it was originally intended, or if Cabinet
has approved the basis on which it will be allocated.

e Budget Virements in excess of £75,000 are submitted to Cabinet
for Approval.

e Where there are policy implications for the Council which require a
budget virement, Cabinet approval must be obtained.

Page 96



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

An internal Audit report on Financial Management and Budgetary
control in April 2014 gave substantial assurance that controls were in
place, though recommended that a documented process was put in
place for undertaking virements. In addition to this, the Council’s
external auditors also undertake adequate testing on all areas of
financial management and no issues have been previously identified
as part of the audit of the annual accounts in relation to the treatment
of virements.

A procedure to ensure the consistent application of the rules applying
to budget virements was introduced in July 2014 which specifies the
details required to be completed as part of the virement and the
approval required to be obtained prior to the completion of the
transaction within the Financial System.

Overall control of budget virements is undertaken within the Strategy,
Accounting and Systems team which tracks the movements as part of
the budget monitoring process and also ensures that any virements
that change the purpose of the funding are subject to the relevant
approval.

The Corporate Finance Manager as Section 151 officer for the Council
has a legal responsibility to ensure the proper management of the
Councils financial affairs and is content that the rules and procedures
in place governing the virement of budget are adequate.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Corporate Resource Overview and Scrutiny Committee are
assured that there are adequate procedures in place governing the
virement of budgets.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a direct result of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

Page 97



9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Summary of virements 2014/15

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara_dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 98



91552 SBY'6Z 908'S 16SEL 895°85 6£5°96 $99°€ PIE9 GSS'vZ 2060 58 43 (zs4) 196png pasiaay
0000 0L0°0- 2100 2000 0000 0000 ¥00'0- 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 S9j0UBIDWYT saiseq o) yoeg
0000 0000 G100 1510 0000 062°0- L10°0- 0000 950 000°0 $90°0- 0000 sbuineg Asusioy3 YO-auQ Jeap-u|
0000 800°0- ¥0L°0- LEL0 0s0°0- 0000 0S0°0 8100 0000 0000 100°0- 0000 UONNGUILIOY SIIBULOY aAYSIUY
0000 SIE0 €ELO- 1100 £8L°0- ¥40°0- 820°0- 8£0°0- 900°0- 9900 280°0- £PL0 saauiel | wapop ‘183|4 '6-a sjabpnq o uonesyenuad
0000 2250 ¥50°0 8v0°0 [:]k4] 8v0'0 €610 0900 €ET'L- 0v0°0 8€0°0 £L0°0 uofegu| piepuels uoN
0000 LS50 S¥Z°0 6€1°0- 180°0 1220 §5¢°0 GEE0 [ Lo 1200~ 890°0- wsunsnipy Aed snieis ajbuig
0000 0000 202°0- S50°0- 92’0 L¥0°0- 0000 0000 6¥¥0 2200 £10°0 ¥EL'O Aouaioyyg mainsy uiwpy
0000 050°0- 852°0 00€°0- 16L°0- 8520 e 8020 €0€C 6L20- 9.2°0- ZELO- Aousioyy] Ma1ARY S2I0PUOM
0000 1120 810 162°0- ¥rE0- GLE0- ave0- 6EL0- 220'L 6v20- 1500 £00'} awubye-ay oyojod

9/1'652 18€°82 ¥6€'9 89€'pL 688'65 91'26 €8L°€ §56'S €98'22 S6E'S 1288 0912 (154) 1ebpng jewiBuO

w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 w3 wiy w3 w3
uoyepodsues]  JUSWIUONAUT asudiayug 5821A18G 1IN0 9 z ebueyn | abueyn ajesodio) S80IN0S3Y  IIUBUIBAOS aanoaxg
vioL 2 ns g buueld B Ay 2 |evos uoyeonpg  |euopesiuefip jeuogesweBio g fenua) g apdoad oo
(01 yiuop e se)
SLvL0Z 1A Jebpng jo & S

T xipuaddy

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)

SUBJECT: DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENT POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To seek input from the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on the Draft Discretionary Housing Payments Policy 2015
prior to its consideration by Cabinet on 215t April 2015

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) provides extra funding
to Local Authorities (LA) to provide claimants in receipt of Housing
Benefit (HB) or Universal Credit (UC) further financial assistance with
their housing costs in cases where there is a shortfall between the HB
entitlement and the rent payable.

2.02 There is provision within the regulations whereby the funding for DHP
can be “topped up” by the LA by 2.5 times the DWP funding.

2.03 Central Government’s Welfare Reform programme, designed to make
transition from Benefits into work easier, in some cases had a
negative financial impact on households and individuals, and the
Government has identified DHP as temporary support to enable
claimants during transition.

2.04 The administration and payment of DHP is at the discretion of each
LA, and therefore there can be wide variances in qualification for DHP
between LA’s. The current DHP policy in Flintshire was approved by
Cabinet in April 2013

2.05 Due to the high profile that DHP has received and criticism from
Welsh Government regarding a perceived inconsistency in the awards
process, a collaborative approach to produce a framework was
commenced with the appointment of the Welfare Reform Club to
produce an all Wales DHP policy framework in conjunction with
colleagues from 20 Authorities in Wales who joined the project. The
completed framework is unique to Wales and as such the Welfare
Reform Club have copyrighted the framework which cannot be

Page 101



2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

reproduced without their consent

The developed framework is consistent with many elements of the
Flintshire policy that was approved in 2013, but has provided a more
detailed structure for deciding who should be awarded a DHP, to
achieve fairness and consistency within the Council and also across
the 20 Local Authorities in Wales who formed part of the project

group.

CONSIDERATIONS

DHPs are available to assist with meeting housing costs across all
tenure types, i.e. Social Housing and Private Rented Sector

Where it is needed this funding is designed to help in the short term.
It is subject to cash limited funding and each application for DHP is
assessed on financial need and personal circumstances with each
decision being made on a case by case basis.

Examples of where a DHP may help:

o Where a restriction in rent has been applied

Where a spare room restriction has been applied

Where there is a deduction from benefit based on a non-
dependant in the household

Where benefit does not meet the rent payable due to the level
of a person’s income

Assistance with removal costs

DHPs cannot be used for:
¢ Ineligible service charges
¢ Increases in rent due to outstanding rent arrears
e Certain sanctions and reductions in benefits including
recovering ongoing housing benefit overpayments
e Council Tax

In addition to contributing to the Wales framework, the Council has
undertaken detailed analysis of the DHP caseload in order to identify
the need for future budget commitments more easily and also to work
proactively with customers to identify issues and problems. By
providing advice and support, the aim is to ultimately remove the
reliance on DHP payment by assisting people to become more able to
manage their own affairs more effectively in the longer term.

The new policy enables us to apply a level of “conditionality” to the
DHP awards. This means that a DHP is awarded and will continue for
the agreed period if the customer demonstrates that they are
committed to working together with the Council and to helping

Page 102



3.07

3.08

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

themselves.

This may involve a range of support options including:

¢ Working with a debt advisor

e Actively seeking ways to move to more affordable
accommodation

e Reviewing utility costs to identify better value options

¢ Reducing or eliminating non-essential expenditure, i.e. mobile
phone contracts; satellite TV etc.

¢ Increasing contribution from other household members

e Claiming other benefits they may be entitled to, i.e. free school
meals

The type of support or advice will depend on the specific needs of the
customer and will be tailored to meet that need. It will be the
customer’s responsibility to demonstrate that they are making every
effort to make changes or access/accept support or advice; in order to
become more financially stable for the future

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny considers the
Discretionary Housing Payments policy the Appendix and provides
any input and comment to Cabinet on 215t April 2015

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The DWP funding for DHPs in Flintshire has been increasing over the
last three years, however, for 2015/2016 this funding has now
reduced. The Council has also been providing a budgeted “top up”.

Financial DHP Government | Flintshire Total Spend
Year Contribution “Top Up”

2012/2013- £114,426 £0 £109,071
2013/2014 £242,119 £30,776 £272,895
2014/2015 £276,166 £36,834 £313,000
2015/2016 £208,883 £0 £208,883

*Pre Welfare Reform

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There is a need for proactive work and support due to the impacts of
Welfare Reform on residents in order to mitigate them particularly for

Page 103



6.02

6.03

7.00

8.00

9.00

9.01

9.02

10.00

11.00

12.00

12.01

vulnerable people.

Whilst the effects of Welfare Reform have impacted a significant
number of people and increased the need for DHP, it is important to
note that DHP is also payable to people who require further financial
assistance that have not been impacted by these changes.

The reduction in DHP funding from DWP in 2015/2016 will inevitably
have an impact on the level and duration of DHP awards, however, it
is intended that by working with customers in line with the new Policy
these impacts can be managed and mitigated with longer term
sustainable solutions.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The increase in the administration of DHP payments due to welfare
reform has increased demands on the Benefits department which to
date have been absorbed within the current structure.

The support of customers for benefits / budgetary advice has been
provided by the Welfare Reform Response Team, which is now an
integral part of the Benefits Department. The availability of funding for
this team is currently under review.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Discretionary Housing Payment Policy 2015

Page 104



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Discretionary Financial Assistance Regulations (2001)
Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths

Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

2015

CYNGOR

sy O Y Filint
“* Elintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 107



1. Purpose of the Policy

1.1 The purpose of this policy is to set out Flintshire County Council’'s (FCC)
approach to dealing with claims for Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) with effect
from April 2015

1.2 In operating this policy we will have regard to the Discretionary Financial
Assistance Regulations (2001) (SI 2001/1167) and the guidance issued by the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in its Discretionary Housing Payments
Guidance Manual (Guidance Manual). FCC have engaged with 19 other Local
Authorities in Wales to develop a Policy Framework.

1.3 The Policy covers decisions within the gift of the council and so provides a
platform for the exercise of discretion. In creating the DHP policy we have taken into
account the key objectives and overall strategy of the DHP policy framework.

1.5 It is not possible (and not the intention) to make an award in every case where
there is such a shortfall. So the policy framework is a way of helping to decide
priorities for payment when demand exceeds supply (as will usually be the case).

1.6 The Policy Framework has been created to make most effective use of the DHP
allocation, by making decisions that are designed to improve outcomes for people
rather than simply to park a problem.

2. Introduction

2.1 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHPs) are discretionary sums payable by the
Council to a person in receipt of Housing Benefit (HB) or Universal Credit (UC),
DHPs are paid from a fixed budget and are intended to help people meet housing
costs, usually where there is a shortfall between their Housing Benefit (or housing
element of Universal Credit) and their rent.

2.2 DHPs are regulated by the Discretionary Financial Assistance Regulations
2001(SI 2001 No 1167) within the regulations a Council is allowed much discretion.
FCC will administer the scheme with reference and regard to the contents of this

policy.

3. Statement of key objectives
3.1 Our objectives include:
1. To encourage and help keep people in employment;
To prevent homelessness and aid people to retain sustainable tenancies;
To help people who are trying to help themselves;
To help keep families together;
To support vulnerable people in the community;
To help people through times in which they are stressed and vulnerable;
To help to alleviate poverty;

To assist people that are particularly disadvantaged by Welfare Reforms;

© © N o o M 0D

To give all applicants as fair and consistent a decision as possible;

Page 108



10. Supporting domestic violence victims who are trying to move to a place of
safety;

11. Supporting the vulnerable or the elderly in the local community;

12. Helping customers through personal and difficult events ;

13. Supporting young people in the transition to adult life;

14. To give greater priority to those who are making efforts to help themselves;

15. To prevent outcomes such as homelessness which are likely to involve
further hardship for the household as well as additional and avoidable costs
for the council.

3.2 In the pursuit of these objectives FCC undertakes to consider each case on its
individual merits and to act fairly, reasonably and consistently.

3.3 In order to achieve these objectives FCC will have to apply some priorities in this
process, these are:

e The financial circumstances of the household

e The extent to which members of the household are able, and willing, to
manage the situation they are in

e The wider financial consequences of not making an award

4. How to apply for a DHP

4.1 Claims can be made in writing on the official claim form or in another format if it
contains suitable information on which a decision can be reached. Claims for DHP
can be submitted on line at our website http://www.flintshire.qov.uk/ or requested
by email to benefits@flintshire.gov.uk, by telephone (01352) 704848, or Connects
Offices based within the County.

5. Awarding a DHP

5.1 The award of a DHP may be for any duration and will usually be paid from the
Monday following the day the application form is received by the authority.

5.2 FCC has the discretion to backdate any claim for DHP; taking into account the
customer’s circumstances at that time and the funds available. The claimant has to
be in receipt of Housing Benefit or Universal Credit during the period covered by the
whole backdate request period.

5.3 For all applications, a financial assessment will be made, comparing income with
expenditure. No source of income is disregarded and all expenditure is taken into
consideration. If there are non-dependants in the household they may be expected
to contribute more. The principle is that help should go to those who have no other
means of meeting the need.

5.4 An assessment will then take place to establish if the household’s total outgoings
are equal to or exceed their income. If there is income available, or could be made
available, sufficient to meet the shortfall in rent, or other housing need, a DHP
application will not succeed, unless or until circumstances change.

Page 109


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/
mailto:benefits@flintshire.gov.uk

5.5 If there is some income available, but this is not sufficient to meet the shortfall in
rent, if the application for DHP is successful, this amount will be deducted from the
award.

5.6 DHPs can often be most effectively used as a temporary measure whilst a
household seeks a more long-term solution to the situation they are in. Where this is
possible, higher priority will be given to those who are taking steps themselves, i.e.
those with a spare room who are taking steps to move to smaller accommodation.

5.7 There are some households who are not currently helping themselves and FCC
will be working to assist those who are willing to start doing so. In these cases, the
DHP may be conditional on certain action being taken, i.e. accepting a referral and
working with a debt advisor

5.8 There are, however, situations where DHP may be needed for a longer period,
ones who cannot realistically alleviate the situation they are in by taking action
themselves, these households will also be given high priority

6. Payment and Notification

6.1 FCC will pay a DHP by BACS in the same way that Housing Benefit is paid.
Notification of successful and unsuccessful awards will be accompanied by a
statement explaining the reason for the decision. The letter will include details of the
value of any award, how long the award will be for and to whom the DHP will be paid
to.

6.2 The letter will ensure that successful customers know when to report relevant
changes, for unsuccessful applications, it will also provide an explanation of the
reasons the claim has been unsuccessful so that the claimant may request a review
of this decision if they wish to do so.

7. Review of Decisions

7.1 DHPs are not payments of Housing Benefit and are therefore not subject to the
statutory appeals procedure, however, FCC does have a review process. FCC will
consider requests to review a decision for the following reasons:

e adecision not to award a DHP,

e adecision to award a reduced or lesser amount of DHP,
e adecision not to backdate a DHP or

e adecision that there has been an overpayment of a DHP.

This review will be dealt with by a senior officer to the original decision maker. In the
event of an affected person still being dissatisfied, the Benefits Manager will make a
final decision

7.2 A claimant (or their appointee or agent) should request a review, in writing, within
one calendar month of the written DHP decision.

8. When a DHP can not be paid

8.1 DHP is not available for the following purposes:

Page 110



-_—

To help with Council Tax costs;

2. To cover any shortfall in Housing Benefit that occurs due to the recovery of an
overpayment;

3. To cover any ineligible service charges such as meals, fuel charges, personal

care etc.

9. Other forms of assistance with Housing Costs

9.1 If a Council Tax payer cannot meet their council tax liability, then FCC may
consider writing off their debt in accordance with the Corporate Debt Policy.

9.2 If a customer requires assistance with Rent Deposits or Rent in advance then this
is available from other FCC departments.

10. Overpayments

10.1 If a DHP is found to have been overpaid, we will consider whether it is
appropriate to recover it. If we decide to recover any overpayment this may be in full
orin part.

10.2 If the overpayment occurred because of our mistake we would not normally
seek repayment, unless the customer contributed in some way to that mistake or
knowingly allowed a DHP to continue to be paid in error.

10.3 We will not recovery any DHP overpayment from a person’s on-going benefits.
A separate arrangement will be negotiated.

11. Conclusion

11.1 This policy is not intended to be completely rigid and should not be interpreted
as such. In a discretionary scheme, there will always be some cases with special or
unusual circumstances where a decision-maker will consider a DHP award justified.
The advantage of a discretionary scheme is that, whatever framework is used, such
awards can, and should be made.

11.2 However, this policy does provide a structure for deciding who should be

awarded a DHP. It is designed to achieve a reasonable amount of fairness and
consistency in decision making.

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)

SUBJECT: HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENTS POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek input from Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on the draft Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy 2015
prior to its consideration by Cabinet on 215t April 2015

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  An overpayment of housing benefit occurs when a payment of benefit
is made when there is no entitlement to this payment.

2.01  They can occur for many different reasons including:

e Failure or delay in reporting changes in circumstances

e Official error on the part of the authority or agency of the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), either through
mistakes or delays in processing

e Detection of fraudulent claims and payment irregularities

e Delayed receipt of income, such as an award of a state benefit
including initial lump payment of arrears

2.03  The Council must seek to maximise recovery of overpaid Housing
Benefit in accordance with the Authority’s legal responsibility and it's
duty to protect public funds in accordance with the Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006 and the Housing Benefit (State Pension Credit)
Regulations 2006.

Although the recovery of Housing Benefit Overpayments is included in

2.04  the Council's Fair Debt policy, due to the specific nature of the debts
and the guidance from DWP around recovery options, it is important
that these are detailed in a separate policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 It is a DWP requirement that Flintshire County Council demonstrates
that it carries out administration and recovery of Housing Benefit
overpayments efficiently and effectively.

Page 113



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

By doing this, the Authority:
¢ Reduces the loss to public funds
Provides revenue for the Authority
Helps reduce subsidy loss from overpayments
Deters fraud and error
Demonstrates the Authority’s commitment to accuracy and
provision of a quality service to it's customers.

The Benefits Service is committed to reducing the levels of
overpayments by ensuring the accuracy of decisions and the
timeliness of actioning changes in circumstances, whilst also
promoting the requirement for customers to promptly advise the
Department of changes in their circumstances.

Although all efforts are made to minimise overpayment it is inevitable
that overpayments will occur. The Authority takes its role in protecting
the public purse very seriously and the overpayment recovery process
makes a significant contribution to this.

In developing this Policy, consideration has been given to the merits
of specific cases and the need to exercise discretion in a fair and
reasonable manner. The policy, or any aspect of the policy, should
not be viewed as a statement of intent in respect of all cases.

The aim of the policy is:
e To improve debt recovery and prevent debt from occurring
e To collect all recoverable overpayments where possible and
appropriate
e To set out a clear debt recovery strategy

To act as a guide to the Council’s administration of Housing Benefit

overpayment recovery and to set a framework within which recovery
decisions can be made

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny considers the
Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy as set out in the Appendix and
provides any input and comment to Cabinet on 21st April 2015.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Taking a structured and pro-active approach to recovery of Housing
Benefit Overpayments will ensure that income is maximised and bad
debt is minimised.

Although the write-off provision is already covered by Financial
Procedure Rules, in the interests of transparency, protocols to support

Page 114



6.00

6.01

6.02

7.00

8.00

8.01

9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

12.01

the write-off of bad debts is also included in the Policy. This will
ensure that when it is deemed that a debt should not be recovered,
those debts are written off promptly so that resources are
concentrated where they can be most productive

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The policy will ensure that recovery action will be taken against
deliberate non-payers or those who delay making payment without
genuine reason, while also working to identify and assist those who
genuinely can’t pay.

The recovery of Housing Benefit Overpayment is also covered in the
Authority’s Fair Debt Policy so the principles for providing a
commitment to work with people (and their representatives) who have
fallen or are likely to fall into arrears in order to set reasonable and
realistic payment levels that they can maintain, ensuring that payment
arrangements reflect their ability to pay as well as the level of debt
owed.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The Policy is supported by guiding principles to ensure that in the
wider public interest recovery action is proportionate, consistent and
transparent.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Draft Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy 2015.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

Page 115



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Housing Benefit (State Pension Credit) Regulation 2006
Flintshire County Council — Fair Debt Policy

Flintshire County Council — Financial Procedure Rules

Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths
Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 116



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Housing Benefit Overpayments Policy

2015

CYNGOR

sy D1 Y Filint
“* Elintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

1
Page 117



1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENTS POLICY AND STRATEGY 2015

Introduction

This document, in conjunction with Flintshire County Council’s Strategic Policies
sets out the Council’s commitment to ensure that every effort is made to recover
Housing Benefit Overpayments in accordance with the Housing Benefit Regulations
2006.

An overpayment is an amount of benefit that has been paid to, or in respect of, a
claimant to which he/she was not entitled and relates to Housing Benefit.

Overpayments Policy

The Council will seek to maximise recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit in
accordance with the authority’s legal responsibilities with respect to the decision-
making process and its duty to protect public funds. At the same time, account will
also be taken of the authority’s fair debt policy and anti-poverty strategy.

Consideration must always be given to the merits of specific cases and the need to
exercise discretion in a fair and reasonable manner. The policy, or any individual
aspect of the policy, should not be viewed as a statement of intent in respect to all
cases.

The authority takes it’s role in protecting the public purse very seriously and the
overpayment recovery process makes a significant contribution to this. This
commitment will be reflected in the firm recovery of any fraudulent overpayments as
identified by the Department for Work and Pensions.

Why do we need a Policy?

It is essential for Flintshire County Council to demonstrate that it carries out
administration and recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments efficiently and
effectively.

By doing so the Council:

a) Reduces losses to public funds.

b) Provides revenue for the Council.

c) Helps reduce subsidy loss from overpayments.

d) Deters fraud and error.

e) Demonstrates the Council’s commitment to accuracy and provision of a quality
service to its customers.

Roge/246



4

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

Aim of the Policy

The aims of this policy are:
a) To improve debt recovery and help prevent debt occurring.

b) To collect recoverable overpayments where possible and appropriate.
c) To set out a clear debt recovery strategy.

d) To act as a guide to the Council’s administration of Housing Benefit overpayment
recovery and to set a framework within which recovery decisions can be made.

:I'he policy will be reviewed annually.

Overpayments Strategy

An overpayment is defined by Housing Benéefits legislation as being any payment by
way of benefit to which there was no entitlement.

Overpayments are caused by a number of factors, including:

Failure to report or delay in reporting a reportable change of circumstances, whether
accidental or fraudulent in nature.

Payment of benefit in advance.

Official error on the part of the authority or an agency of the Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP), either through mistakes or delays in processing.

Detection of fraudulent claims and payment irregularities.

Delayed receipt of income, such as an award of a state benefit including an initial
lump-sum payment of arrears.

Strategies for Preventing or Minimising Overpayments

Flintshire County Council recognises that its actions can influence the level of
overpayments, but accepts that some overpayments will inevitably occur. The

authority is committed to seeking ways to prevent overpayments and to keep
overpaid amounts to a minimum wherever possible. Current strategies include:

a) Providing claimants and landlords with clear information regarding their duty to

report changes of circumstances as quickly as possible, and the types of changes
that must be reported.

b) Seeking to action all notified changes of circumstances within 14 days of

notification.

30d0aner319



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

f)

Seeking to prevent fraud and error entering the benefits scheme at the point of
initial application, by utilising the Risk Based Verification software process.

Providing staff with regular training and updates on legislative changes and work
procedures, with the aim of increasing skill and knowledge levels and thus reducing
local authority official error overpayments.

Undertaking a claim-checking routine to ensure that a selection of
claims/assessments processed are analysed for error. The results of this checking
will assist in informing the programme of staff training and contribute to continuous
improvements.

Using the authority’s powers of suspension and termination in cases where doubt
exists as to the claimant’s benefit entitlement.

Referring suspicions of Fraud to the Department for Work and Pensions.
Promptly identifying all recoverable overpayments.
Using all permitted methods of recovery.

Making payments of Housing Benefit in arrears to enable changes to be actioned
before the next payment is sent.

Identifying Overpayments

Accurate and prompt identification of overpayments is important to ensure that the
incorrect payment of benefit is discontinued, to maximise the chances of
successfully recovering the overpayment and reducing the number of complaints
and appeals.

In order to help identify overpayments promptly, the Council uses The DWP’s
Customer Information System (CIS). Details of ending entitlements and changes to
DWP benefits and HMRC Tax Credits downloaded on a daily basis.

Incoming work items are categorised and those identified that could potentially be a
change of circumstance which could lead to a reduction in benefit and a subsequent
overpayment are treated as a priority.

The Assessment Section identifies overpayments and establishes the cause of the
overpayment, whether it is recoverable and from whom it should be recovered.

The calculation of a recoverable overpayment is arrived at by deducting the amount
of benefit that should have been paid, over the period in question, from the amount
of benefit actually paid. Consideration is given to any uncashed or returned benefit
payments or underpayment of benefit and customers are given the opportunity to
provide evidence of any possible underlying entitlement which may be used to offset
against the overpayment.

Decisions on Recoverability

Roge/22(5



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

b)

d)

e)

a)

The authority must make a number of decisions in the course of calculating
overpayments of benefit and undertaking recovery action. In making these decisions
the authority will have due regard to the circumstances of each case and will not
apply “blanket” policies that may constitute fettering of its discretion. Correct
decision making is essential because:

There are consequences and rights for the claimants and other affected persons.
The decision can affect the finances of the Authority if it is not recoverable.

Decisions made, and the reasons for them, can provide an indication of the levels of
fraud and error against inefficiency.

In all cases where benefit is overpaid, a decision will be made as to whether the
overpayment is recoverable, based on the criteria stated in the Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006, 100.

The authority specifically undertakes to ensure that:

No person is required to repay non-recoverable overpayments. A non recoverable
overpayment (as defined in the Benefit regulations) is one that has been caused by
official error, and the claimant or recipient of the benefit could not reasonably have
been expected to know that an overpayment was occurring at the time that payment
was made or at the time of notification.

In respect of recoverable overpayments, due consideration will be given to the
question of whether or not the authority should exercise its discretion to recover the
debt.

Wherever applicable, underlying entitlement to benefit during the overpayment
period will be taken into account and, if the necessary information for calculation of
underlying entitlement is not available, claimants will be given at least one
opportunity to provide that information.

No landlord/agent will be required to repay an overpayment where the conditions of
regulation 101(1) of the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 as amended (HBGR) are
satisfied.

All affected persons are sent notification of relevant decisions within 14 days of the
decision being made and that these notifications comply with statutory
requirements.

When making decisions on recoverability, Benefit Assessors will consider the facts,
any supporting evidence and the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006.

In deciding whether to recover an overpayment, each case will be decided on its
own individual merits. The aim of the Council is to effectively and efficiently recover
any overpayment without causing unreasonable hardship to the claimant.

Factors that should be taken into account include:

The amount of the overpayment - it may not be economical to pursue recovery of a
small overpayment if the claimant has moved out of the area.

50902061321



8.6

9.1

9.2

9.3

b) If the claimant is vulnerable - medical/documentary evidence may be requested

c)

before deciding not to recover.
Maladministration / delays in processing.

The process map can be found at Appendix 1 which shows how to decide if an
overpayment is recoverable.

Notification of an Overpayment

The Housing Benefit regulations state that any person affected by a decision
relating to an overpayment must be notified in writing e.g. if recovery is to be from a
landlord, a notification letter must be sent to the claimant and the landlord. A
person affected is someone whose rights, duties or obligations are affected by a
decision.

A notification letter will be issued within 14 days of the decision and will comply fully
with Schedule 9 of the Housing Benefit Regulations. The letters will include:

a) The fact that there is a recoverable overpayment.

b) The reason for the recoverable overpayment.

c) The amount of the recoverable overpayment.

d) An explanation as to how the overpayment was calculated.

e) The period of the overpayment i.e. which benefit weeks it relates to.

f) The amount of any deduction to be made from ongoing entitlement to benefit and
when the deduction will be made.

g) The right to request a detailed statement.
h) The right of appeal and the time and manner in which to do so.

The notification issued to the landlord should contain all of the above. The landlord
should know the reason of the overpayment and given enough information to decide
whether or not they agree with the decision. Although this may mean disclosing
personal information to the landlord about the claimant, this can be done in broad
terms and only expanded upon if the landlord has decided to appeal.

If an overpayment notification does not comply with the above requirements, the
Council will decide if the claimant or landlord has been prejudiced by such a
defective notification. The Council will therefore decide if the omission within the
notification has meant that the claimant or landlord does not know the level of the
overpayment, how it occurred or what their appeal rights are. If this is the case then
a new notification will be issued as soon as possible. If the omission is minor, any
appeal can proceed.

Bome:/22i



9.4 All notification letters are checked by the Benefits Assessors to ensure that they are
accurate prior to them being issued. Production of all system-generated letters
creates a diary entry on the notepad confirming the letter has been created, which
cannot be removed.

9.5

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

11.

11.1

11.1.a

In the event of a request for a review or appeal, legal challenge, complaint or civil
proceedings, it is possible for a copy of the original notification to be obtained from
within the computer system.

Principles of Overpayment Recovery
Overpaid Housing Benefit may be recovered by several different methods.

The authority will seek to recover overpaid Housing Benefit in the most efficient and
cost-effective manner, having regard to its statutory obligation to protect public
funds.

The authority will have regard to the circumstances of the individual from whom
recovery is sought. The person from whom recovery is sought shall have the right
to request a revised repayment arrangement based on his financial circumstances.

A recoverable overpayment can be recovered from the claimant or from the person
who received the payment — e.g. a landlord who has been paid in respect of a
tenant. In coming to a decision as to from whom recovery will be sought, due
consideration will be given to HB Regulation 101 (2)

In the case of direct payments to a landlord or third party, consideration is given to
whether the payee could have reasonably known they were being overpaid at the
time of the payment.

In cases where the claimant caused the overpayment as a result of a fraudulent act,
recovery should usually be sought from the claimant, even in cases where the
payments were made to the landlord. If the landlord/agent is directly connected to
the fraud then recovery should be sought from the person to whom benefit was
paid.

Where an overpayment was the result of a fraudulent act by the claimant, and the
landlord reported the fraud to the Council, the overpayment should always be
recovered from the claimant, even though the landlord may have received
payments.

Specific Methods of Recovery

Instalment recovery / Recovery from ongoing benefit entitlement
Instalment recovery or recovery from ongoing benefit entittement may be
used by the authority where the debtor has continuing entitlement to Housing

Benefit. A portion of the weekly entitlement is withheld and offset from the
outstanding debt until it has been fully recovered.

70902061323



11.1.b

11.1.c

11.1.d

11.1.e

11.2

11.2.a

11.2.b

11.2.c

The provisions of regulation 102 of the HB Regulations limit the maximum
amount that may be recovered each week and the authority will not exceed
these maximum amounts without express written agreement from the debtor.
In any case, the authority will not reduce a person’s minimum weekly payable
benefit below 50 pence. Recovery at a higher rate than those prescribed in
the Regulations can only be done with the debtors consent and is voluntary.

At the outset of instalment recovery, the authority will decide on the level of
deduction to be made on the basis of the information available. The claimant
will be notified of the commencement of instalment recovery and informed of
their opportunity to request a revised repayment arrangement based on their
financial circumstances. The authority may request such reasonable
information as is necessary to decide on an amended level of recovery.

In cases where payment is being made direct to a third party, the authority
will inform that third party of any change to benefit payments as a result of
instalment recovery but will not divulge the reason for the reduction.

In cases where recovery of the overpayment causes severe hardship, an
arrangement will be made to reduce the weekly recovery rate. Risk of being
made homeless, multiple debts to the Authority and health problems are
examples of why a reduction in recovery may be considered. In such
instances it should be made clear that this decision will be reviewed and
possibly revised in the future.

Offset of Entitlement (netting off)

The authority may offset some or all of any amount of benefit owed to the
claimant to recover an overpayment in part or full (regulation 102(1) HB
Regulations).

When considering how much of any owed sum should be offset against
overpaid benefit, the authority will take due consideration of the claimant's
circumstances. Recovery by offset must not place the claimant's tenancy in
jeopardy by creating or aggravating an existing situation of high rent arrears.

In cases where there is an existing overpayment from an earlier period, it is
possible that there may be a substantial initial payment due in respect of the
start date of a new claim. In such cases, and depending on the size of the
outstanding overpayment, the authority will initiate instalment recovery from
ongoing entitlement and may offset an appropriate number of weekly
instalments from the initial payment.

11.2 Recovery from "Blameless Tenants"

11.3.a

Where an overpayment is recoverable from a third party, such as a landlord
or agent, and Housing Benefit continues to be paid to that third party, the
authority may recover the overpayment by deducting some or all of any due
payments to the third party. Recovery may be made in this manner even if
the third party is no longer receiving payment of benefit direct for the person

lReger/225



11.3.b

in respect of whom the overpayment was made, in which case recovery is
said to be being made from the entitlement of the third party's "blameless
tenants".

When using this method of recovery, the authority will:

Give consideration to the circumstances of the third party when deciding how
much of any owed sum should be recovered from future payments to the third

party.

The authority will also undertake to inform the third party of their rights and
responsibilities in respect to this recovery action. In particular, the authority will
inform the third party of their obligation to credit the rent accounts of the
blameless tenants with the full amount of benefit that would have been paid had
recovery not been made.

11.4. Recovery from other Social Security Benefits

11.4.a

11.4.b

If recovery from ongoing entitlement to Housing Benefit is not available, the
authority may seek to recover overpaid benefit from another Social Security
benefit (as detailed in regulation 105(1) HB Regulations in payment to the
claimant.

The authority will seek to recover overpaid benefit in this manner in cases,
which it considers suitable and will fully co-operate with the Debt
Management Services of the DWP.

11.5. From a Credit on the Rent Account

11.5.a

In the case of Local Authority overpayments, recovery can be made by
recovering an amount from the claimant’s housing rent account.
Overpayments will not be recovered from a Council Tenant’s rent account
unless the account is in credit; the claimant was paying the correct level of
rent at the time of the overpayment; the claimant requests recovery be made
using this method; a payment has been made twice for the same period; or
the overpayment is due to vacation of property or death of the claimaint.

11.6 Recovery from Housing Benefit paid by another Authority

11.6.a

This method of recovery may be appropriate where the person has left our
authority area and it can be established that they are in receipt of Housing
Benefit in another authority's area. The debt may then be recovered by the
new authority making deductions from ongoing entitlement on behalf of our
Authority.

oodhane1325



11.6.b Flintshire undertakes to co-operate with all requests from other authorities to
recover overpaid benefit on their behalf. Flintshire retains the right to set the
level of weekly deduction that it considers appropriate in light of the person’s
circumstances.

11.6.c Flintshire will, however, seek to recover any Housing Benefit debt owed to
itself before seeking to recover for another authority.

11.7 Registration of Debts at County Court

11.7.a Where recovery by any of the methods outlined above is unavailable or
impracticable, the authority may seek to enforce recovery by registering the
debt at a County Court. This has the effect of enabling the authority to use
recovery methods that are otherwise unavailable without obtaining a County
Court Judgment (CCJ).

11.7.b When seeking registration of a debt, the authority must provide the Court with
a copy of the original overpayment notification letter, which for these
purposes constitutes a demand for payment. The authority will ensure that
all notifications that are issued are in full compliance with the statutory
requirements.

11.7.c The authority will not seek to register a debt at County Court before the
debtor has had the opportunity to dispute the overpayment decision (i.e. one
month), nor will it seek registration where a request for revision or appeal is
outstanding.

11.7.d The authority will incur costs when registering a debt and these will be added
to the total debt owed. In exceptional circumstances consideration may be
given to waiving any costs incurred.

11.7.e Wherever practicable, the authority will seek to use this method of recovery
enforcement in preference to taking a County Court small claims action. This
will mean that fewer people experience the negative effect that a CCJ has on
their credit record.

11.8 Direct Earnings Attachment
From April 2013 the Department for Work and Pensions introduced a process
whereby Local Authorities can apply a Direct Earnings Attachment as an
alternative to applying the debt to the County Court.
When this option is used the authority applies to the employer to make a

percentage deduction from the employees wages which is then offset against
the outstanding debt.

11.9 Sundry Debts

Rag041:265



11.9.a

11.9.b

11.9.c

11.9.d

11.9.e

11.9.f

11.9.9

In all other cases, or where the authority considers it to be most appropriate,
recovery will be sought by issuing a sundry debtor invoice. This may lead,
ultimately, to County Court action and a CCJ being issued.

Where a request for revision or an appeal has been received, no invoice will
be issued until the dispute has been resolved.

Where an invoice has already been issued and the debtor disputes the case,
recovery action will be suspended until the dispute has been resolved.

If the debtor fails to make payment in full or an arrangement to pay within 14
days of the invoice being issued, a reminder notice will be sent. If no
payment in full or arrangement to pay is then made within a further 14 days,
the debtor will be sent a final notice to inform them that full payment or an
arrangement to pay must be made within a further 7 days of the date of that
notice, failing which the council will commence legal action.

Flintshire will not issue an invoice for less than £10.00. Where the claimant
is unable to repay the debt in full, the overpayment team shall negotiate a
suitable instalment arrangement.

The authority will incur costs when taking County Court small claims action
that will be added to the total debt owed. In exceptional circumstances
consideration may be given to waiving any costs incurred.

If the authority obtains a CCJ or registers the debt at County Court (ref. 15),
recovery may be enforced by a number of different methods. These include:

(i) Order to obtain Information - the debtor may be required to attend Court and give
evidence as to their income and expenditure, at which time an arrangement to pay
may be obtained.

(i) Court Enforcement Agent action - the authority may apply for the Court bailiff to
enforce the CCJ by distraining against the goods of the debtor.

(iii) Charging order - an application to the Land Registry for registration of a charge
on property or land owned by the debtor, the debt thus to be paid on sale of the
property or land.

(iv) Attachment of earnings - where the debtor is known to be in work and the
authority is able to obtain details of their employment, the debtor's employer may be
required to make statutory deductions from their employee's pay and forward these
deducted amounts to the authority.

(v) Third Party Debtor order - where the authority is able to obtain details of the
debtor’s bank account(s), application may be made for such an order. This will
have the effect of freezing the debtor's access to his account and the redirection of
funds to the authority.

Any costs incurred by the authority in pursuing any of these enforcement methods
will be added to the total debt owed. In exceptional circumstances consideration
may be given to waiving any costs incurred.

1109eg®L2 7



12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

Debt Management

Flintshire County Council Housing Benefit Overpayment Section undertakes to:

a) Monitor the level and age of debt regularly.

b) Prioritise recovery of overpayments caused by fraud.

c) Set relevant targets for the recovery and management of
overpayments, working towards improvements on current
performance

d) Produce relevant, accurate performance management information

e) Monitor and record the success of different recovery methods and

review working practices regularly to ensure continued efficiency.
Write Offs

In accordance with current Financial Regulations, all debt deemed bad and
irrecoverable must be reported to the Corporate Finance Manager.

Overpayments are only written off by an authorised officer in accordance with
Flintshire’s Corporate Debt Policy after all avenues of recovery which Flintshire
considers appropriate have been considered.

If an overpayment is deemed irrecoverable it will be written off, as this is a legal
requirement within the Regulation, this is not required to be authorised as above as
it is not legally allowed to recover debts which are classified as irrecoverable.

Individual write off requests in excess of £5000 must be authorised by the Executive
Member for Finance.

The Council recognises that with recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments it is
dealing with potentially some of the most financially vulnerable members of the
community and while an overpayment might be recoverable under the law, there is
always the separate decision as to whether recovery should be sought. This means
that some debts will have to be written off because, for example, the debtor has no
means to repay; it is not in the Council’s interests to request repayment; the debtor
has died; become bankrupt or absconded; recovery action is not cost effective or
the debt is time barred.

The decision to write off a debt as uneconomic or inappropriate to recover will not
be made without full consideration of available methods of recovery.

Team Leader reviews outstanding debtor overpayments to identify and record any

debts that should be considered for write off. Any debts subsequently identified will
be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s Corporate Debt Policy

Page41:335



13.8

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

Where an overpayment is classed as irrecoverable the claim details will be recorded
to reflect this.

Roles and Responsibilities

All staff should be aware of the overall aim of preventing overpayments occurring,
keeping overpayments to a minimum once identified and ensuring efficient and
effective recovery without causing undue hardship.

Staff are trained to identify work items that may cause an overpayment and be able
to prioritise this work so it can be actioned immediately.

Staff responsible for creating new claims are responsible for identifying cases where
an overpayment exists on a previous claim or address and ensuring that recovery
action is reinstated or transferred.

Staff responsible for creating the overpayment will decide whether or not it is
recoverable and if it is they will issue the first invoice.

The Benefits Team Leader monitors and amends recovery of overpayments
recovering from ongoing benefit and the assessment team amends accordingly.
The Benefits Officer will recommend whether a local authority error overpayment is
recoverable. This is passed to the Benefits Team Leader to make the final decision.

Additional Information / Summary

The policy will be revised when there are changes to legislation and to improve its
effectiveness in preventing and recovering overpaid Housing Benefit.

The Council will not operate blanket recovery policies, with each case being
considered on its own individual merits.

All customers will be treated in a fair and equitable manner.

The Council will monitor, maintain and improve systems that seek to prevent
overpayments caused by official error and minimise overpayments caused by
misrepresentation or failure to report changes of circumstances. It will also monitor
the success rate for recovering all overpayments.

All staff should refer to the Department for Work and Pensions Housing Benefit

Overpayments Guidance Manual for greater detail in deciding discretionary issues
and the correct course of action.

130 eg® 629



Overpayment Recoverability Process Map

Overpayment occurs

Was the original payment Yes The overpayment is
made as a payment on > recoverable
account?
No

v

Was the overpayment No

caused by official error?

A 4

Yes

Could the claimant, a
person acting on their
behalf or any other person
to whom the payment was Yes
made, at the time of receipt
have reasonably been
expected to realise that it
was an overpayment.

\ 4

No

The overpayment is not
recoverable

Rage41280s



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY 16™ APRIL, 2015

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items
can be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County
Council or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the
Cabinet Work Programme and the Strategic Assessment of Risks &
Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

How, where and why were the issues identified?

Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any
evidence of this? Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction?

Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

S

NOo O

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to
determine the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they
are Members. By reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme
Members are able to ensure it is Member-led and includes the right
issues. A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1
for Members’ consideration which has been updated following the last
meeting.

Page 131



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme
attached as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 N/A.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 132


mailto:ceri.owen@flintshire.gov.uk

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Indicative Forward Work Programme 2015/16

Medium Term Financial Plan

Development consultation

DATE SUBJECT O&S Focus REPORT FROM
Thursday 14t
May 2015 Improvement Plan Review 2015/16 Karen Armstrong
10.00
Forward Work Programme Robert Robins
Thursday 11t YE Performance Reporting Monitoring Robert Robins
June 2015
10.00 Forward Work Programme Monitoring Sara Dulson
J
Q) Approval and development Robert Robins
% Thursday 9t Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Out turn) Monitoring Sue Ridings
HaJuly 2015
8310.00 Forward Work Programme Robert Robins
Approval and development
Items to be Health and Well-being update Information Helen Stappleton
scheduled

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\4\3\4\Al00009434\$cz3tut22.doc Last printed 28/08/2014 1:53 PM

Page 1 of 1



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Annual Improvement report and the Corporate Assessment report of the Auditor General for Wales for Flintshire
	Enc. 1 for Wales Audit Office Corporate Assessment
	Enc. 2 for Wales Audit Office Corporate Assessment

	5 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 10)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 10)

	6 Budget Virement Process
	Enc. 1 for Budget Virement Process

	7 Discretionary Housing Payment Policy
	Enc. 1 for Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

	8 Housing Benefit Overpayments Policy
	Enc. 1 for Housing Benefit Overpayments Policy

	9 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)


